
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE:  March 13, 2024 
TIME: 9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

PAGE:  AGENDA ITEMS 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week.
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas,
Oregon.

(b) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council (AKA P.A.T.H.S) will be meeting on March 13, 2024 from
12:00 pm to 2:00 pm located at 1407 Monmouth Independence Hwy, Monmouth OR 97361.

(c) The Grand Ronde Sanitary District Board is meeting on March 20, 2024 at 9:15 a.m. The meeting
will take place in the Polk County Courthouse, 850 Main Street, Dallas, OR, 97338.

(d) The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be speaking at the State of the County meeting on
Thursday, March 21, 2024 from 5:30PM to 6:30PM, located in the main conference room of the Polk
County Courthouse at 850 Main St Dallas, Oregon 97338.

3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes)

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM March 6, 2024

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

7. PUBLIC HEARING – LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENT 23-03 – Michael Burns

CONSENT CALENDAR 

(a) 

(b)  

(c)  

(d)  

(e) 

(f) 

Polk County Right of Way Dedication, Haga  
(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

Polk County Right of Way Dedication, Lauer 
(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

Polk County Right of Way Dedication, Mesdag 
(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

Polk County Contract No. 24-33 (Amendment 1 to 23-169), Dallas School District 
(Jennifer Segovia, Family & Community Outreach) 

Polk County Contract No. 24-35, Service Contract 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

Polk County Contract No. 24-37, Oregon Health Authority 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 

   THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 

  ADJOURNMENT 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES March 6, 2024  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst was present and Commissioner Gordon was present via 
Zoom. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Polk Extension Service District will be meeting at 9:30 am on March 6, 2024. The meeting will 
be in the main conference room located on the first floor of 850 Main St Dallas OR 97338. 
 
The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council (AKA P.A.T.H.S) will be meeting on March 13, 2024 from 
12:00 pm to 2:00 pm located at 1407 Monmouth Independence Hwy, Monmouth OR 97361. 
 
The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be speaking at the State of the County meeting on 
Thursday, March 21, 2024 from 5:30PM to 6:30PM, located in the main conference room of the Polk 
County Courthouse at 850 Main St Dallas, Oregon 97338. 
 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF February 28, 2024 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF February 28, 2024. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 



March 6, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

(a) Polk County Resolution No, 24-04, In the Matter of Correcting 
Resolution No. 24-02  
(Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 24-31 (Amendment 2 to 20-205), 
Lease Agreement  

    (Dean Bender, Emergency Management Manager) 
 
   (c)   LPSCC Appointment Memorandum, Jessica Fitts 
    (Mark Garton, Polk County Sheriff) 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 9:02 a.m. 
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: March 13, 2024 



POLK C UNTY

Pox CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

MEMORANDUM

Polk County Board of Commissioners

Michael Burns, Associate Planner

March 5,2024

Legislative Amendment 23-03: Text Amendments to the Polk County Zoning
Ordinance Chapters 136 and 171 .

Public Hearing - March 13'2024

TION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt the proposed text amendments to PCZO
Chapters 136 and 177, as included in Attachments A and B.

STAFF REPORT:

I. BACKGROUND

Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land use

plariring goals or rules implementing the statutes or the goals are enacted, counties must either
idopt airindments to their local code to implement the changes to State law or.apply those :qqg.t
directly to land use applications. Currently,-the Planning Division app.lies certain sections of ORS

and Oiegon Adminisirative Rules (OAR) directly to land use applications. Some changes in State

law are iot mandated to be adopted by the local government, but rather allow the local government
the opportunity to be more restrictiveihan State law. The prgposg{ legislative amendment is
intended to provide conformity to PCZO Chapter 136 and 177 with land use regulations found in
State law where required, andio consider optional changes to PCZO Chaptg 136 and 177 where
Polk County's locai ordinance may currently be more restrictive than or differentiates from State

law. It should be noted that many bf the required text amendments to the PCZO found in
Attachments A and B are not su6stantive changes but, rather are intended to provide parity with the

language found in State law.

Typically, text amendments solely intended for conformance with provisions in State law would be

piocessed through a ministerial aition, however, staff has chosen to consolidate those changes that
^are 

required and those changes that are optional into one legislative amendment process in order to
evaluate all amendments to PCZO Chapter I77 and 136 synchronously.

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

ISSUE:

The Polk County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearin_g_conggrgng potential text
amendments to Fok County ZoningOrdinance (PCZO) Chapters 136 and 777,-which perlain to the

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU)'and Timber Conservation (TC) ZoningDistricts. The proposed text
amendments are intended io bring PCZO Chapters 136 and 177 into compliance with State law, and

to consider adopting optional changes for uses in these zones.

RECO

Board of Commissioners Mento (3-13-2024)



A public hearing was held before the Polk County.Planning Commission on February 6,2024,

;i.;; pliling"Staff made a recommendation toihe Plann'ing Commission regarding,f. pjo!_o,."?d

text amend-eitr to pCZO Chapters 136 and 177 . The Plannrng Commission.concurred with statt

;;ilp;tosed text amendments and recommended that the Board of Commissioners adopt stafls
recommendations.

II. COMMENTS RECEIVED

No comments were received as of the writing of this staff report.

III. CRITERIA FOR LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENTS

A legislative amendment to the text of the P9?O may be approved. provided that the request is 
^

basei on substantive information and factual basis to support the change. In amendingthePCZO,.
F;k c.;;it.n"rial^"nit.ut. compliance with PCZO iis.oeo. The applicable review and decision

criteria a." iisted in bold, followed 6y staff s analysis and findings.

1. AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE POLK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.

(A) [ORS lg7.612(l)l An amendment to the text of the Polk Counfy. Zoning Ordinance
solely for the f".por" of conforming the ordinance to new requirements in a land

use statute, stitewide land use planiling goal or rule of the Land Conservation and

Development Commission impiementing the statutes or goals may be made

without holding a public hearing when:

(l) Polk County gives notice to the O_regon Department of Land Conservation
and Develoirrient of the proposed c[ange ih the manner provided by ORS

197.610 and 197.615;

(2)lll;H"f}i,T;Ti#H"{'#ififift 
l'llftHii:litrf#tr1#itiil""

(3) The Planning Division provides notice of the proposed change to the
Planning Commission.

(B) An amendment to the text of the Polk County Zoning O.rdinance under the
provrsions of subsection (A) of this section shall be considered a ministerial
decision and not a land uie action. Amendments under subsection (A) of this
section need only be adopted on the Board of Commissioner's Consent agenda.

(C) All amendments to the text of the Polk County Zoning Ordinance that are not
included in subsection (A) of the section shall be processed under th-e p_rocedures

and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment described in Chapter
115.

Staff Findings: The proposed text amendments are intended_to bring.PCZO.Chapters 136 and I7.7

into conformance *ith Stut. law where required, and to evaluate and consider a_dopting optional 
.

changes for uses which may be permitted itr th" EFU and TC Z.oningDistricts. While a portion of
thesJtext amendments are included under subsection (A) of this criteria, not all of the changes are

for the purpose of conformingPCZO Chapter 136 and ll7 to.new requirements found in Oregon,

Revised Statutes, Statewide fllanning Goais, or Oregon Administrative Rules, but rather to consider

uJ"piirg optional 
"hung.r. 

ThereforE, staff iras deteimined that the proposed text amendments shall

U" $to.|rri,d under the"procedures and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment

described inPCZO Chapter I 15.

The Polk County Board of Commissioners initiated this legislative amendment^process on

September 19, i023. Staff sent notice of the plgposed text amendments to the Oregon Depafiment
of Land and ionservation Development (DL-CD) on January 2,2024. Staff sent notice of the

etunning Commission Public Heaiing to ill interested parties on January 11,2024, more than 20

2Board of Comrnissioners Mento (3'13-2024)



days prior to the hearing. Notice of the P_lanning Commission public hearing was also published in

th; l;;;y i , zOzi priblication of the ltemized Observer newspaper gldlwas posted on the

i;Iililt 
-division 

pale of the Polk County website on January 17,2024. Pursuant to PCZO

I i5ba0: tfr. pfu*iitf born-ision condutted a public hearing on February 6,2024 and made a

recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to adopt stafFs recommendation of the proposed

amendments to PCZO Chapters 136 and 177 .

Staff sent notice of the March 13 , 2024 Board of Commissioners public h.earin^g to all interested

p;i.r on FebruarV'iO,iOZi,more than 20. {.ays prior.to the hearing \q!q" of the Board of
"c"--ir.i"".ir pJuri.'Guiing;us also publis:hed_in _l4e 

February Il,z02+ publication of the

Itemized Observer n"*rpup"iund was pbsted on the Planning Divisionpage of the Polk County

,r.Urit" on February 20,'202+. No comments have been recefued as of the writing of this report.

Z. Compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes, and the sta_tewide planning goals and.related.
administrative rules. If att exception to one or more of the goals is n9c_ess.ar}, PoIk C-ou,nty

.t u1 uOopt findings which address the exception criteria in-Oregon Administrative Rules,

Chapter 660, Uiviiion 4; IPCZO 115.060(4)]

(B) A local government shall amend its acknowledged comprehensive-plan or
ackrrowl"dged regional framework plan andfand use regulations imPlgry9lttlg^ 

.

either pi;;"bt u r-"ff-i"itiated post-acknowledgmelt process under ORS 197.610 to

197.625 to co"mply with a new^requirement inland uie statutes, statewide land use

ffu"ni"g g;;ir;; rules impl"metitittg the statutes or the goals. IORS 19].646(I)l

(C) When a local government does not,adopt amendments to an acknowledged
comprehensiv"e plan, an acknowledged regional framework plan or land use

..g"iutio"r i-pi.*"nting either nl,a'n, as_iequired by subsection (1) of this s.ection,

th[ new requirements ap"ply directly io the tbcal gov-ernment's,land use decisions.

The failure to adopt a-indmettts to an acknowledged comprehensive plan, an

a"t ttowteOged regional framework plan-orland use regulations implementing
either piu""..q"iied by subsection (i) qUlir section is a basis for initiation of
enforcement a'ction puisuant to ORS'197.319 to 197.335. IORS 197.646(3))

General Findings: ORS 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land u.se planning

gdffi;iffiffi'ptemeniing the statute_s or the.goals are enacted, counties must either adopt

imenA-ents to their local Jode to implement tlie changes to State law-or apply.those changes^- 
^

di;;.fly 6 iand use ;ppii;uiio;s. Curiently,_the Planning Divi-sion ?pplies certain sections of ORS

-rJ oin aii.&tv to ii"a use applications.'Some changEs.in State law are not mandated to be

;A;pdttyirr"i.jrur go;rn-"irt but rather allow the l6cal government the opportunity to be more

restrictive than State law.

OAR Chapter 660 Division 33 pertains to agricultural lands and the administrative rules that.govern

land uses that are consisient wiih oregon Stitewide Planning Goal 3. oAB Chapter 660 Division 6

pJ"irrl9 il;;i tunAr unA the admini"strative rules that govern land uses that are consistent with

bt{;Siut"*iO. pi;ilC c oi q. ORS 215 pef.ar.ns to-uses th3t mly be allowed in the EFU and

TC Zones. This text amend"rnent is intended to'add the changes found in OAR Chapter 660-Division

tt OAR Chapter 660 ti;i.i"n 6, and ORS 215 to the PCZO where required 9y the State. Many of
these chang"iur. not substantive but are rather minor changes intended to make-the language found

in the pCfO verbatim to State law. In other cases, some ofihe changes would add additional
pioririo""that have noib""n adoptedby the County buj have been applied dire^ctly t: Jtl ::"'applications. Because these requiied changes are. not substantive but rather are fbr the sake ot
.'o"i"i-"""e, staff will not det'ail these ch"anges in the findings. The full text amendment with all

changes can be found in Attachments A and B.

This report will be primarily concentrated on the evaluation ofthe changes fou.nd in OAR Chapter

660 Division 33, OIR Ctrui,t"r 660 Division 6, and ORS 215 that ar_e notrequired to be adopted by

th. C;iy u"a iffo* local governments to be more restrictive than State law. Due to changes in.

State law,'p CZO Chapter 1i6 and 177 are currently more restrictive, less restrictive, or differentiate

3Board of Comrrrissioners Merno (3-13-2024)



from State law in its regulation of some land uses tha! pay be allowed in the EFU and TC zones' As

nart of this Drocess. the"Board of Commissioners could adopt the optional text amendments as

il;;il;i^S";if, ;d"pf thor. text amendments with further restriitions, or choose to not adopt

those text amendme.rts'. f6.r" changes *iff U" t"f"rred to in this report as "optional changes," and

ui" air.ur.ed in furtliei aJairueto#along with staff s recommendation for each change.

In other cases, there have been changes in State Jgw to_ optional uses which have resulted in the

FbZO t;*g less restrictive in some-sections. Although ihese uses are optional, the changes are

i.qri."a t" 6. uao.iio tn"p1lo in order to continuE to be in compliante with State law. These

;ilil;, ;il b;;;i;;.ato in ttris report as ;-undutory changes," and are discussed in fuither detail

below.

Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellings: Optional Change

The planning Division currently authorizes manufactured dwellings that were_used as a temporary

;;i.;ld;frnip owelting to b6 "removed"by converting them to an otherwise approved use. In

;;;.-i;J;r..,ih" i;i;;[Juse could require the properly.owner to obtain a change of up
u"iTJirg p"i-li, in"t,ta]iig1nrp*iio"r rtoil tne nuitafig Dirririon. In other instances, the intended.

;;;;;Tj;;q"ii" u;;fd;irg auttro.iiaiio". uttimutily, if the intended use of the manufactured

J*"frirg ir oin"t*ir" p"it"iti.a"Uy the zone, staff finds that it is not necessary ,? tlJ:i:ltlY"remo;e
th" -un"ufuctured dwe)ling from the subject property,-so long as all necessary permtts are obtalned

to formally convert and/ofre-authorize ihe r^ttudtut. iot un a[proved use This process is intended to

ir*itffi b"rd"n, placed on property owners while also meeting the require.merfs found in State

law. For these reasons, staff recbmmends not adopting this texiamendment as it is written in statute'

Procedure for Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellings: Mandatory Change

State law indicates that temporary medical hardshlp {*glJtngt^ :h9^"]9.!9 Processed under a

conditional .rr. ,"ui"*, ;; tfiir uG is listed under OAn eeO-606-0025(4)' As discussed above,

;;p;;y;;Ji"ut t u.hrftip a*"ttlngs are currently processed through an_administrative review

pr"J.*. Staff 
",rrr"ntty "pdli* 

tfr" g"etreral review st-andards listed under PCZO 177.050 to all

;;;dili;;"i use appli-ititjris. The p,irpor" of this criteria is to ensure that the proposal would not

i;;;;; Gift""titth;G. "i rierificiltly increase the cost of accepted 9:q gl{"te-st practices o.n

;;;;;afiG6dr a.r"i.a t" firm or foiest use. Staff already app.lies PCZO"|77.050 to.applications

6;1.[offiv -"ai""f fr"rarnip a*ellings; therefore, changing 
-th.is 

process from administrative

r."ui"* to a cbnditional use ,.,ri"* *or'tid not alter staff s e-valuation for a temporary medical

i.,".O.fiip a*.iling. This amendment would change this_application from ? IypJ A notification

t;;;il;.. to a Tfpe e 
"oiifi"ution 

proced,r.", ur tp.tiqqa i" PCZO 111.240.-This would require

staff to send notice;f ;;;;pieie uipricationio ali neighboring property owners located within a

750 foot buffer r"tro""a1"g ih" r"d3i"t property prior io the isiriance of the decision. Because this

.rru'g. *o"ld be requii.J,iturruedan prgcgssiirgtemporary medical hardship dwellings under a

fil;"B pr"..A"i" ii iOZ5. Based Jn tti" informition discuised above, staff finds that this text

am-endment is a mandatorY change.

Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellines: Optional Change

In some instances, temporary medical hardship dwelling_appligati.onq also require a significant

resource manageme"ipt"r i"f the dwelling *ould be sitel within the inventoried Deer and Elk
Habitat Area, which is a Goal 5 protected resource.

4Board of Comrnissioners Merno (3-13-2024)



Within the Deer and Elk Habitat area, "residential development" is considered a conflicting u:9' 
.

pursuant to pCZO r C-O+Oiaj, *h.n'u permitted use in the underlying zone i: listed as a conflicting

use, the manageme"ipiun tE"i6w type is ministerial. However,pqrsua$ toPCZO 182.040(B),

*66n u conditli,onal "ri ir 
identifiedis a conditional use, a public hearing is required.

Since the mandatory change identified above includes.changing temporary medica-l hardship

J*"riirgr t" u. u 
",inaiiiofial 

use rather than an administrative ievie'fuprocess, staff recommends

th"i;i;;:lying text Ue aOAea to the temporary hardship dwelling criteria !!1t specifies the

;;A;ir;;J"i."of|rtupt.i ts2 ur. applicable,bur are nb_t subjecito the publichearing requirements

iirt1.6 i; r 82.040(B).'wtr"n pczci chapter 1 
82 was adopted, tefpjrary hardship dwellings were ..

not conditional uses. rfr"ief"re, staff fiirds that it war tr&er Pok boulty's intent-to-require a public

rr.uring for temporarv *"4rc4 irardship_ dwellings that are within the Deer and Elk Habitat area.

Staff recommends *idiffi th. 
"pii""it 

iext am"endment for temporary hardship dwellings included

in Attachments A and B.

Replacement Dwelling: Part Mandatory Changes, Part Optional Changes

The Oregon Legislature recently amended ORS 215.291 through the passage of House Bill2192
(2brt, ;hl.t ptit"i* i";;tt"d;t_dwellings jn resource zo-nes..TL._ptoposed-changes would

fu-.,/; 
"pautiig 

th.;pi;;"nio*.ffing crit"e{a forPolk County's PeV *t4 TC zones, while

;pd;t.r i6 ttt. F"arm/Foiestzone would be"comp_let^ed through a fulure legislative amendment

piocets that focuses on updates PCZO Chapter 138.

Staff has identified a discrepancy in ORS 2I5.291(2)(bXC), which may require a future legislative

correction. ORS 2 1 5.29 l(2)(b)(C) states:

(2) For replacement of a lawfully established dwelling under this section:

(b) The replacement dwelling:

(C) Must comply with the colstruction provisions of section R327 of the Oregon

Residential SpecialtY Code, if:

(i) The dwelling is in an area identified as extreqe or high wildfire risk on the statewide

map of wildfire risk described in ORS 477 '490; ot

(ii) No statewide map of wildfire risk has been adopted'

These criteria reference a "statewide map of wildfire risk" described in ORS 477.490 and has

uaJitio"uf developme.ri rtundutds for properties located within-the "bigh" and "extreme" risk

""t.g"ri"r. 
Ho*.u.i, itr;;;t describtd i" ons 477 .490 is called a "siatewide wildfire hazard Sap"

una 
"ao., not include'an "extreme" risk category, but rather only has three risk- catego.ries including

;;io#i llnoderate",;;A "f,igh';- Staffrevie#ed a draft of this map and found that Polk County does

not.ontuin uny'frigh'*iia?rr" risk areas. For these reasons, staffrecomme_nds that the amended

criteria found in odS zts.igt(z)(bxc) not be adopted locally at this time. Instead, staff can.apply

ihi,ilt"f directly as a conditioiiof a.j".lopment ihat would-require the applicant to determine the

applicability of these standards at the time of development.

Staff recommends that all other mandatory changes found in ORS 215.291be adopled to.provide

;;i;t.""t *itfr Stui. tu-. fn" replacement dw6tfing criteria currently fo.ur.rd inPCZO.Chapters
ilO and til isboth more restrictive and less restrictive than State law and the proposed changes

would provide parity.

Home Occupationsi Optional Change

7CZO 177.040(A) currently permits home occupations that are operated.by a resident of the

ptopgrty ir wfrictr'tne busineis in located_, subj eit to review and approvql .o-f ? :^onditional use

i.rittit. uome occupations are authorized 9y irr" State pursuant to ORS 215.448 and OAR 660-006-
'OOZSi4XO. State law currently authorizes homg occupations to be operated by a resident or an

employee'of a resident of the property on which the business in located.

Board of Contmissioners Merno (3-13-2024) 5



Under the current criteria listed inPCZO 177.040(A), home occupations must be operated by a

resident of the p.op..ty in which the business is located, but may employ up.to five (5) employees'

1[ir-pi"p"r.a'u-."Otitent would authorize hgry.. occupations to be operated by an employee of the

;ia;;i, 
"tiftougfr, 

it could not result in any additional employees and would not_permit any.uses or

a size and scale"that .o"fA not otherwise b6 permitted under the cunent criteria. Based on this

infot,,.uiio", staff finds thatpCZO I77 .040(N could be interpreted as being more restrictive than

State law. For these ieuro.rr, staff recom*"itOi adopting the proposed text amendment, as shown in

Attachment B.

New Single Family Accessory Dwelling Unit to Support Family Forestrv: Optional Change

pursuant to ORS 215.757 and oAR 660-006-0021(9), counties may choose to allow a new single

i;iit;;;;siory dwelling unit to support furnily for6itry in the TCzone subject to a review and

"ppr;;;i*[." 
itr" d;;ili-rg ;outa b" o""uqig{!v an o*n". or a relative of the owner to assist with

tl#6;.toperutiotr on irr". p.op".ty. ThePCZCi does not currently list this as a permitted.use in.
ii;; TC;;".'eaopting irrir t!,"t'umendment would authorize singl6 family accessory dwelling units

;;;pp;;f.mily for-eity i" ttt" TC z9ne. To provide clear parameters-regarding the manner.in

rl,fti"hifrir ,lr" -uy be authorized in the TC zone, staff recommends adopting this text amendment,

as shown in Attachment B.

pursuant to ORS 215.7g3 and oAR 660-006-0026(2)(e), counties may choose to adopt standards to

utto* land divisions to preserve open space or a paik in the TC zone. A land division under this

.rii"riu *""r4 require tfie purchasbr of bne of the resulting parcels to be_a provider of public parks

or open space, or u not-fotlproftt land conseryaJion organ-ization. Land divisions under this section

;"j; ;ti'll be'subjecitothdpartition standards listed in pott< County Subdivision and Partition

o;di"^il fpjsdl c6upi". b1. por these reasons, staff recommends adopting this text amendment,

as shown in Attachment B.

Period of Validity for Residential Uses: Mandatory Change

Currently, thePCZO states that land use approvlls.for residential uses are valid for four (4) years. A
ringf . trio (2) year extension to this period bf validity may be approved upon submission of a

,r.iTt.r ."quetf for an extension prioi to the expiration of the approval.

A land divis ion to preserve oDen soace a nark

the use The
to grant applicants extensions for
recommends adopting this text amendment, as shown

Optional Change

been

text amendments would the County
land use applications. For these reasons, staff
in Attachment B.

the

Land Division Requirements: Optional Change

Currently, land partitions in the TC zone must be exercised within two (2) years of the effective
Jut. pu.JuuittipCzO 177.060(F). Staff has not found any provisi^qns in state law which regglle^ 

.

ih; d;i"d ;ivalidity for land puttition. in the TC zone to be two (2) years. tl.tttiq way, the PCZO is

more restrictive than state law. Adopting the proposed text amendments would allow the County to

giu" upptirants more or less time to exeicise ippioved.land divisions. For these reasons, staff
i-ecommends adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment B.

General Findings: The recommended amendments to PCZO 136 and l77,which would comply. -;itffidlmpiement the applicable amendments to State law, are inglu{g{ as Attachments A and B'
Conr.qu"ntiy, this update process would be consistent with ORS 191.646(1). An exception to the

6

mathe

Board of Commissioners Memo (3-13-2024)



Oregon Statewide Planning Goals is not requiredto 11lllole any of these amendments. Staff
;;;l"d"r i6at tne propor.i text amend-ents to the VCZO would comply with this criterion.

(B) Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan (PC-CP) go

any plan map amendment criteria in the plan; IPCZO

Findines: The Polk County Comprehensive Plan (P^CC.|) is impl:meltgd by the provisiols^tl the
pffidpolk County sirUdividion and Partition ordinance_(PCSO).. Section 7 of the PCCP,

i-pf.*"ntation Technlques, states: "in theory,.the zoning ordinance is a legislative exqryssion of
ifr"'Co-pi"fr.nsive Plan and must satisfy ceriain standards selqtt by statute." The PCCP is

il;i;Ai;J *iifrir ttre bounds prqvided by Slate law. The PCcq can set goals.and p_olicies, which

affi;tti r-ptementation by the pCZO or PbSO, are more restrictive than State law' However, the

piouiiionr fitne pczo oi pcso may not be less restrictive than State law. Where Polk County

i.quii..i"ts and ORS conflict, the iounty is required to apply the more restrictive of the two

standards.

As discussed above, ORS 197.646 requires that Polk County update its local code to implement

;dg; i; Stut. tu*. Until such changes are made, th9 Couhty must.implement the new provisions

;f Sdt.law directly. planning Staff is"currently applying State larv_direCtly to applications.for many

;t;h; ilposed changes. In trtht of ttre changei p;j1te,gw, Polk Countyhas 3n gpportunity to

e,raluute and consid;"d"p,G these chang.ito pczo Chlpter 136 and 117. As discussed, some of
these changes are req"iiecfand'other chan[es are optiona! vtl"v ofthe changes are not substantive

but are ratlier intenddd to provide parity bdtween t6e local ordinance and the language found in
State law.

The proposed text amendments would include changes toPCZO 177.030, which pertains.to uses

th"t ;;;;rtright permitted in the TC zone. These chan_ges are mandato{Y a.nd would add the

iu"g"ug. i.ofr OnS Chapter 215 andOAR Ch-apter 660 Division 6 verbatim in order to provide

nufiu'I,ith Stut. law. Th'e intent of this is to afford citizens the right to uses that have little or no
"i*pJ.t o" *igfrUori"g properties without requiring a land.upg application or license. By adopting

ih.'13|d"g; f,ound in"Stat6 law verbatim, th€ Co_r1nty wo^gl$ be permitting all such uses that are

;;itig1fi dmitted ures a.rd authorized by oRS Chapter 215 and oAR Chapter 660, Division 6. The

County does not have deference over any ofthese changes.

The proposed text amendments would also include chan-ges to PCZO 136.040 and 171 .035, which
p.rtdin do ur.r that are subject to administrative review land use application'.Similar to PCZO
j:O-OjO, these chang., ur" mandatory and are intended to_provide parityrvith State law by adopting

ifr"funguuge found in ttt. applicable bRss and OARs verbatim. Many of these changeshave been

uppii.fUytounty staff diri6tly to land use applications. Therefore, the intent of these changes is

rifiprv t"'uJa ttt."tu.,guage from State law toihe local ordinance rather than applying the provisions

directly from State law.

The proposed text amendments could include changes toP.CZO 136.050 and 177 '040,I17 ,060, and

til.lOlfi,*1i"tr are uses that the county may be moie restrictive in implementing. Changes to these

sections that are more restrictive then Stateiaw are not mandatory; however, the County may not be

less restrictive than State law. As discussed in the previous section, the Planning Commission has

made a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners regarding the adoption of each of these

ctrangis to the PCZO as provided in Attachments A and B.The pioposed amendments to the PCZO

*.*?.rign"d to directly implement State law and adopt uses th-at are not currently permitted by the

PCZO. Tf,e Board of Commissioners could choose to adopt more restrictive standards in such cases

where the Planning Commission has recommended adoption.

Conformance with specific PCCP goals, policies and intent are discussed below.

l. Polk County will strive to permit those uses that have little or no impact on
neighboring properties without requiring a land use determination or limited
land use determination. [PCCP Section 2, Element A, Goal 1'3]

2. Polk County will permit those farm and nonfarm uses in agricultural areas

als, policies and intent, and
11s.060(8)l

7Board of Commissioners Memo (3-13-2024)



authorized by Oregon Revisetl Statutes _Chapter 2L5 and Oregon Administrative
fu; C["ti6r OeO]uivision 33. IPCCP Sectibn 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands

Policy 1.41

3. Polk County
agricultural

will perm it farm-related and non-farm residential use in
areas consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes ter 2l5 and

2, ElementOregon Administra tive Rules Chapter 660' Division 33. IPCCP
B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.61

Findings: As discussed, some of the prgpo.sed_t9xt amendments would directly implement ORS . .

LG:pt.:, zit;a oAi{Crr"pt.iZoo, bi.iisiotr 33. These text amendments would be consistent with
pcip s""t ion2,El;;"nt Ii, policy 1.4, which states that Polk _Co-unty" 

willlermit those farm and

"o.rfur." 
uses in agri",rltu.al'areas iuthorizedby ORS-Ch1gtet2I5 and OAR 660-033' The

piopor"A text am&rdm."t. to PCZO Chapter ti6 for harddhip dw_ellingsjn the EFU zone would

also be consistent *itft pCCp Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Landi Policy 1.6, which states that

Forc C""ntv *itt p..-it farm-related and non-farm res-idential use in agricultr{al areas consistent

;ith o;;t;it i."ii.a St"trt.r Cnupt"r 215 andoregon Administrative-Rules Chapter 6.60, Division

: j.-irraaEition, the;q;ir;a t"xt amendments, specifically the outright pjrmitted uses listed in

\CZO 136.030, *o"t,i U. 
"oniistent 

with PCCP Section i, Elemettt A, Goql I .3, which states Polk

b"rtrty *iflrtriu" to peimirthose uses that have little or no impact on neighboring properties

*itir"rit requiring a land use determination or limited land use determination.

4. polk County will discourage the development of nonfarm uses in agricultural
areas. [PCCP Section 2, Elernent B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5]

Findings: The proposed text amendments would include amendments to nonfarm uses. PCCP

S'".tiofi, Elerireni ii, agii""tt"ral Lands Policy 1.5 is intended to discourage.nonfarm uses in the

EFu;;;,;irr""grr, iiir"u"t no*t"aged that some nonfarm uses are permitGd subject to review and

;pp;";;T;i;;ffiiili;t*ti". o. 
"oniitional 

use application. As mentioned, in such cases where

ahditional nonfarm 
"res 

could be permitted or wh^eie there have been changes to State law

ilt;i;G 6ilf31|| *"r, .iuffdas designed the proposed amendments to the PCZJ to directly

i.rpi.6"rt Stut" law. Because such nonfaim uses i.".iubject to review and approval from the

Fd;i;tbivision, limitations and conditions can be imp"osed to limit the impacts of those nonfarm

uses. For this reason, rtuiinnar the proposed text amen-dments would be consistent with PCCP

Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5'

5. Polk County shalt zone forest lands for uses allowed p.ursuant to Oregon
Administraiive Rules Chapter 660, Division 6. In addition to forest practices and

operations and uses auxiliiry to forest practices, as set forth in Oregon-R-evised

Statute 5Z7.322,PotlrCountj'shall alloiv in the forest environment the following
general types of uses:

a. Uses related to, and in support of, forest operations;

b. Uses to conserve soil, water and air quality and to provide for fish and wildlife
resources, agriculture and recreational opportunities appropriate for the
forest lands;

c. Locally dependent uses such as communication towers, mineral and aggregate

resources use, etc.l

d. Forest management dwellings as provided for in Ore_gon Administrative Rule
660- 06-027i"and e. Other dwellings under prescribed conditions. IPCCP
Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy 1'4]

G. Polk County will permit new dwellings and structures on designated {orest lu19*
consistent *ittt Oi'.gon Revised Statu-ies Chapter 215 and Oregon_Administrative
Rules Chapter 660r"Division 6. IPCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy
1 .sl

8Board of Comrnissioners Merno (3-13-2024)



Findings: As previously discussed, the proposed t^ext amendments would directly implement

L.ffpt.:r 2iiJra oan'ctrupt.r 660, Di;ision 06 for uses in the TC zone. These text amendments

*orid be consistent witfr pbCp Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policies 1.4 and 1.5, which 
.

state that Polk County *itt p.t-it tf,o." ur.r, including lhe 1eu1 Finqt: Family Accessory ?wg.lling
U;it 6 S"ptort Famiiy Foristry lJse, on forest lands airthorrzedby ORS Cnapbt 215 and OAR

660-006.

7. polk County shall provide the opportunity to establish single-family drvellings on

designated iorest tinds that coni_ply with iot-of-record provisions established
under state law consistent with Or"egon Revised Statutes, Chqpter 215' aq4

Oregon Administrative Rules, Chap-ter 660, Division 6. IPCCP Section 2, Element

C, Forest Lands PolicY 1'6]

Findings: The proposed text amendments would include amendments to lot-of-record dwelling^ -
criteria listed rnpcio--tii.oiofal in order to provide conformity with oRS_C^hapter 275 and oAR
Ch6ile6blOi"lrio" 06. These text amendments would be consistent with PCCP Section 2,

pi"ri.nt C, Forest ru"ar policy 1.6 which states that Polk County shall provide the opportunity to

;rt"blir.h rltrgt.-fu-ilt;;.liir"gs on forest lands that _comply with lot-of-record provisions found in

ORS Chapter 215 and OAR Chapter 660, Division 06'

8. Polk County will review all requests for the division of land in forest land areas

and will peimit only those which meet the following criteria:

^. For forest operations and practices, the minimum lot size will be at least 80

acres.

b. For non-forest parcels, the proposed division is consistent with Ore^g-on

Revised Statutels, Chapter Z^tS, anA Oregon Administ_rative Rules, Chapter
eeOrfiivision 6 and complies with all apffica]lg.requirements of the zoni18
u"O p'u.titioning ordinaices. IPCCP Setiion 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy
r.7l

Findings: Some of the proposed text amendments would directly implement ORS C-haptet 215 .uld
tffi'"t@r 660,piulri j" 06 by providing. parity between the lanfuage in these.clrapters, and the

7CZO. The propoied text amendmbnts also"include u ne* set of criteria under which a1ap9^li9g1

could divide their land to preserve open space or a park in the TC ry1e pursuant to OAR 660-006-

OOiepS1"l. These text amendments wouli be consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest

Landi fbii"y 1.2, which rtut.r that Polk County will only permit land division requests. in forest.

land when the minimum paicel size is at least [i0 ucret oi the proposed division is consistent with

ORS Chapter 215 and OAR Chapter 660, Division 06.

(C) That the proposed change is in the public interest and will be of general public
benefit; and

Findings: The purpose of this legislative amendment is to update the. PCZO in order to reflect

;ffitgffi.State tiw or discrepaicies found between State law and the PCZO. The proposed 
.

u-.,id-",rts would be in the iublic interest because they would pry.vi.d? continuity letyge11f9
t.quit.-""tr of State law and^ the PCZO . Currently,^t[e. P.lanninf Division must apply ORS. 2 1 5,

OAn Cfr"pter 660 Division 6, andoA\ Chgn]er 6-60Division 33 directly to some types of land use

"ppil""ti*r. 
tirir situation makes it difficult for applicants and property owners to understand what

p;;ri;iorr apply to iheir property. The proposea teit amendments would resolve that issue. This

i""ti""iiv #oirf'A benefitboih appticanti and other property owners seeking to understand their
property rights.

This process also provides the opportunity for the Board of Commissioners to consider how to

*g"tii. sp"ciit" optional .rs"s #h"re the tounty can bemore restrictive than State law. For those

opiional ihung.r discussed in this report, the Board of Commissioners could adopt the text
amendments is proposed by Staff and recommended by the Planning Commission,-apply those text

amendments with further restrictions, or choose to not adopt the text amendments. In some cases,

9Board of Cornmissioners Memo (3-13-2024)



there have been changes in State law to optional uses which have resulted in the PCZ? being less

restrictive in some r;;il;;. Although theie uses are optional, the changgs ?re requir.ed to be.

"J"pt.a 
ir *dei to 

"o"ti""" 
to be ii compliance with'State law. For suih changes, the Board of

Commissioners shai-J"pi trr"* 
"hrng.J 

ur required to_no longer be lessrestrictive than State law,

;hi;li;;;ld alleviate the need to appf State law directly to land use applications'

Staff believes that adopting the language from State law directly.rather than being more restrictive

It un stut. law would de in"the pubfic iiterest and of general public benefit because it remove

certain restrictions il;;"id #fora property owners"certain^property rights.th.at are authoriz.4 by

the State and which ui. not currently permitieA in the TC zon^e. As discuised above, staff and the.

i;iiling Co-*ision have also recbmmended that some optional changes should not.be.adopted.

Foiir,oJ" changes, riuriu"ii"".s that adoption would be unnecessary and it would be in the public

interest and would U. org"rlruip"Uti" b6nefit to not adopt those.ch-anges at this time. Staff s and

it. ptunning commisslofr;r i""oi"mendations on the rpeiific optional changes are discussed in

further detail above.

(D) Compliance with the provisions of any applicable inte_r_go_vernmental agreement\ / 
pertaining to urban growth boundaries and urbanizable land.

Findings: polk County has adopted-intelgovernmental agreements. (IGA9 with each of the cities

tt ut tfr. urbur gro*rtt Uo""Jur'i"r (UGB] that extend ou-tside qf c_ity limits and into Polk County's

pi"riil"g:rri;ai;ti;;. Th.r. cities aie Salem, Dallas, Monmouth, Indeprendence, and Willamina'

tfr. F"fft'City UGB is 
"ntii"iv 

t""ut"d *ithi.r.9ity l.r.mtll; therefore, Polk County does not have an

IGA regarding UCn land use-management with Falls City'

The proposed text amendments to the PCZO would amend the standards for some uses that are

""iiiignip"t-itt"d 
;d some uses that are-subject to rwiew and appr.oval of an administrative

review or conditio";a;*;ppiication in the ppu and TC zones. Wtrite most properties in the UGB

ie zoned,suburbaniesiOentiat (SR), where these text amendments would not apply, some.

p;;p;tti"r in UGBs are zoned BFU. None olthg. ploposed text amendments would impact the 
.

i-iJti"g t.tmsof unv^rce;r -itft unv cities. Polk County will continue to provide notice to cities

when tte county r.d"i*r land use applications for property located within an adopted UGB.

Staff finds that the proposed text amendments would comply with this criterion.

IV. CONCLUSION

Based on the findings above, Staff concludes that the. proposed amendments to the Polk County

V"iiiiotdrnance ,io"ta ro-ply wilh all of the.appliiabie review and decision criteria for a

r.g"i"?ir. "-.ri-.;;:-il diririrr"d, staff and th6 Planning c.o.mryission recommend that the Board

of Commissioners adopt the following text amendments found in Attachments A and B:

1). All mandatory changes toPCZO 136.

o Replacement Dwellings (136.040(I))

2). All mandatory changes toPCZO 177, including changes to:

o Private Parks and Campgrounds (177.040(G))

o Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellings (136'050(G)

. Replacement Dwellings (177.035(B)

o Period of Validity for Residential Uses (177 '210)

3). All optional changes toPCZO 136 including changes to:

o Replacement Dwellings (136.040(I))

o Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellings (136.050(G)

4). All optional changes toPCZO 177 including changes to:

Board of Commissioners Memo (3-13-2024) t0



. ReplacementDwellings

o Temporary Medical Hardship Dwellings (177.040(Z))

. Home Occupations (177.0a0(A))

. Land Division Requirements (177.060(F))

5) All new uses and/or provisions that would be listed under PCZO 177, including:

o A land division to preserve open space or a park

o New Single Family Accessory Dwelling Unit to Support Family Forestry

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the Board of Commissioners options

include the following:

(1) Move to approve Legislative.Amendmerrt"23-03 as recommg"ggq !V Staff and the Planning\-/ 
Commissibir, therebi amending chapter 136 and 171 of thePCZOby:

(a) Adoptin gthePCZO amendments presented in Attachments A and B of the Staff Report,

or

(b) As further amended by the Board of Commissioners (state revisions); or

(2) Continue the public hearing; or

(3) Other

ATTACHMENTS:

A - Proposed Amendments to PCZO Chapter 136

B - Proposed Amendments to PCZO Chapter 177

Board of Commissioners Memo (3-13-2024) 11



Attachment A

Amendments to Polk county Zoning ordinance chapter 136;

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) Zoning District

Additions are doublc_undedlned

Deletions are in strikethreugh

136.040. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATM REVIEW. The following uses are

permitted, subiect to r"ui.* *d upproual under the prescriptive standards specified herein and as

"*;t;|dr*ird U. indicated by fed?al, state and local regulations and permits:

(r)
ORS 2 5.291J

p€ffi+f+$€ul

f*uilitiui 
"unnr*trd 

t" * r*nit*tt **tt" dit'"t*l *ttt.*tt'

@

va]€fem+ax€s.,-€nd

W

ef

was+si;e#a-as++

i" th" l*nd *nd b""**" **hi"rt t" **"**"nt ** d"*ttib"d in
oRs4e++t&

eertified fereeeupaney pursuant te ORS 155'055; er

FIGROUp\coMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendmenrsv023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\Boc Llearing\Attachment A - Revised l36.doc



Attachrnent A

tlt+
that is not less than 90 days aftef the repla€ement permit is

is{sue+

mus++e-si+ee-ori@

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Arnendments\2023\LA 23-03\Pubtic Hearings\BOC Hearirrg\Attachment A - Revised l36.doc



Attachment A

(ai gas. or formerty

fit tntact exterio

fin mterlor wir
(iv) e neating svste ,aud

(i) Five vears befor

(i) Five years befu

(2t for reptacernent of

455-05t
ftt fne reotacemen

(i) Mav be sited on a

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-03\Public Healings\BOC Hearing\Attachment A - Revised 136'doc



136.050 CONDITIONAL USES [OAR 660-033-01301. The following uses_may_be approved,

*U:..1 to .o.nptiu".. *ilh tft. procbdut"r and criteria under Chapter 119, applicable state and

federal regulations, and other specific criteria as may be indicated:

Attachment A

(4) If an appticant is er
(al fne defened renlm

tOAR 660-033-01 30(10)J. One

manufactured dwelling, recreational or the temporary residential use of an
asa temporary use for the

(c)

existing building in conjunction
term of the hardship suffered bY
subj
031

(1)

(2)

with an existing dwelling
the existing resident or a relative of the resident,

ect to compliance with Section 136.060, provided that: [Amended by Ordinance 23-

The hardship is certified by a licensed physician;

The manufactured home or existing building converted to residential use is

connected to the existing sewage disposal system; except when the County
Sanitarian finds the exisling syitem [o be inadequate and thqt it cannot be

iepaired or is not physicall! available to selve the additional dwelling; I!.the
manufactured home will use a public sanitary system, such condition will not

be required.

The applicant agrees to renew the permit every two years.

Within 3 months of the end of the hardship, the manufactured dwelling,
r."tiuiiottul vehicle, or building converted to a temporary residential use, shall

be removed, demolished, or coiverled to an approved nonresidential use.

As used in this section, "hardship" means a medical hardship or hardship for
the care ofan aged or infirm person or persons.

A temporary residence approved under this section is not eligible for
replacement under Section I 36.0400.

(3)

(4)

(s)

(6)

FlcROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment A - Revised l36.doc



Attachment A

F:\CROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment A - Revised l36.doc



Attachrnent B

Amendments to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 177;

Timber Conservation (TC) Zoning District

Additions are dauble-ulrdedued

Deletions are in s+ri*e$reugh

177.020. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall
apply:

(4Q) Center o.f the Subject Tract. As used in Section l77.070, "center of the subject ttact" nleans

the mathematical centroid of the tract. lamenaed bv ordinance 23-0ll

(eE) Cubic Foot Per Acre Perlesrmeans the_ average annual increase in cubic foot volume of
' : 

wood fiber per acre for fully stocked stands at thE culmination of mean annual increment as

reported byitre USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) soil survey. [Amended

by Ordinance l1-031

(D\) Cubic Foot Per Tract Per Year means the average annual increase in cubic foot volume of
' : 

*ood fiber per tract for fully stocked stands at the culmination of mean annual increment as

reported by'the USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) soil survey. [Amended

by Ordinance I1-031

(Eg) Date of Creation and Existence. When a lot,^parcel o1 lract is reconfigured pursuant to
' : applicabl" lu* after November 4, 1 993 , the effecj of which. is to qualify a lot,. parcel or tract

foi ttre siting of a dwelling, the date of the reconfiguration is the date of creation or
existence. R.econfigured heans any change in the boundary of the lot, parcel or tract.

(2) Other forested land -ail. water and fish and wi

(F!) Forest Operation means any commercial activity.relating to the growing or harvesting of
any foresf tree species as defined in ORS 527 '620(6)'

Eeatueuts.
(GK) Relative means a child, parent, stepparent, grandchild, gr?1d!3^r9111 qt9P.g*tundparent,.aibling,stepsibling,niece,nephewoifirstcousin.tW

(*{) Tract means one or more contiguous lots or parcels in the same ownership AS in ORS

2l s.0l0(2).

177.030. USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT. No building, structure, or premise shall be used,

arranged, or designed to be used, erected, structurally altered or enlarged, except for one or more

of the following uses.

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised 177.doc



Attachment B

(E) Uses and activities to conselve soil, air, and water quality and to provide for a1d manage' ' wildlife and fisheries resources, including, but not limited to creation, restoration, and

enhancement of wetlands, fisheries, and wildlife habitat.

(F) @ distribution lines w e'g., electric,
' ' telephorre, nafora@ etc.) and accessory equjprygn] (e4., electric distributiort transfonners,

met'er cabinets, teritinal boxes, pedestals), an+-wn+e+r or-equiproqtrtlha! provide service

hookups, including water service hookups.

(G) Temporary portable facility for the primary processing of forest products. The facility shall' ' be."-ov"dut the conclusion of thoforest operation requiring its use.

(H) Exploration for and production of geothe,rmal, gas, oil, and other associated hydrocarbons,' ' inciuding the placernent and operation of compressors, separators and other customary _

producti6n equiprnent for an individuat well adjacent to the well head as defined in ORS

Clrapters 517 and520.
(L) Disposal site for solid waste that has been ordered established by the. F.nvironmental Quality' ' 

Commission under ORS 459.049, together with the equipment, facilities or buildings
necessary for its operation. Such site designation shall require owner consent.

(M) Temporary forest labor camps, without any permanent structures, limited to the duration of
the forest operation requiring the use.

(O) Private fee hunting eFandfu fishing operations without any accommodations.

(Q) Destination resorts pursuant to ORS 197.435 to I97.MWand upon compliance with
Statewide Planning Goal 8.

177,035. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATM REVIEW. The following uses are

permitted, subject to review and approval under.the prescriptive_ standards specified herein, the
ihegeneralsitingstandardsfordwellingsan-d^structuresunder

Section"l77.080, the fire siting standards for dwellings and structures under 177.090, and as may
otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulations. [amenaed by ordinance 11-03

and 23-011

(A) Single-family dwelling, as authorized under Section 177 .070 of this ordinance and such' ' u."|srory buildings anld uses as are normally associated with a single-family dwelling.

(3) The applieanFagrees te renerv the permit every tlve years,

ire+

FIGROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-03\Public Heanngs\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77.doc



Attachment B

Sc€ti€n-+7+#5€)=

e) Interier-plumbing, ineluding kitehen sird<; teilet and bathing faeilities eerrreeted te a

@
fton-

CIfa-bryfulfv qqtablish€ddruelixs
ud2l5J55;
tL) Ifthe countv deter restored or replaod

(al Uas, or formerty
(il tntact exterio

(iii) Interior Wiring for interior li
(ivt e neating svste

(i) Five vearc before

fii) The date that ins
subiect to propeftv

6) Pive vears before th

firl r
subiect to propertv t

(2) For reptaceme

ftl fne reptacemen

fii Vtav Ue siteO on m

FIGROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



(4) If an appticant is gra

fat fne aeferrea rePlm

sgetra!-

(Dq) A lawfully established dwelling that is destroyed by wildfire rnay be replaced

months when:

standards for dwellings and structures under
llings and sttuctures
177.090, applicable state and federal regulations,

and other specific criteria aS may be indicated. [Amended bv orrlinance Il-031

(A) Home occupahons, ect to

15,448:

Attachment B

within 60

(l) The county finds, based on substantial evidence, that the dw9!!1g.t9,be replaced

containedihoseiiemslistedatsubsection@.Forthepu1poSeS
of this subsection, substantial evidence includes, but is not limited to, county assessor

data.

(Z) The property owner of the record at the tirne of the wildfire may reside 9n lhe subject\-' p;;f;;i in-'u" 
"tirti"g 

building, tent, travel trailer, yurt, recreaiional vehicle, or similar

u..o-11odJit" 
""ii.""placem6nt 

hai been completed or the tirne for replacement has

expifed. [Amcnded bv Ordinance 23-01]

(ED) Wind energy systems utilizing a tower and meteorological.towers..outside of an adopted
'.--'uruuu gio*trr u"J"niruty that are n6t.commercial power generating facilities that would

"itlii"? 
io-e(s)*iirat i.quir"r lighting or that r-equires tiodificatiron to the height oriyqe.gl

construction rtuiOuiar describedin SEction I 12. i 35(C)(1), as provided in Sections l12.I35
and I12.137. lamenoed bv ordinance 09-061

177.040. CONDITIONAL USES. The following conditional uses may be allowed su ect to

comp liance with the procedures and criteria under ChaPter lr9, the
under 177.080, the fire siting177.050. the general srtrng standards for dwe

(r) @be is operated by a resident or emplovee of a res of
the property on which the business is located;

F:\CROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendrnents\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



Attachment B

(z) rt shall emolov on t Nno more than five ftill or parl-time persons aresnptoyec+y
+he$usiness;

(l) Irshau_be-aB€raled Msubstantially Lu

@L{iri+hin tlhe dwelling; or

@) eether buildings normally associated with the uses permitted in the zone in which

- the propertY is located;-ald

4)@not interfere with

IAmended by Ordinance 13-051

(

(B) resources, as defined in ORS Chapter
o'b ., comp ressors, seParators and

sslng of and mineral

@wD).
(C)PermanentfacilityforthepriTqyprocessingofforestproducts@

.

(D)Permarrentloggingequipmentrepairandstorage
17?,050('\); (B); and (D).

(E) Log scaling and weigh stations
(D).

(F) Disposal site for solid waste,approved by t!ryo19rning body. of a city o.J co,llty^ol both and

for which the Department of Environro"trtal Quality has granted a p^ermit under ORS

iig.iaS,togettreiwith equipment, facilities oib.,ilbing. necessaryforits_operation. Such

site designa:tion shall t"quit= o*ner consent

@

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment R - Revised 177'doc



Attachrnent B

sta1lols.

F:\GROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendmentsgo23\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



Attachment B

(b) The number of pr

(c) The number of Dr

(H) Public parks including only those uses specified under OAR 660-034-0035, or OAR 660-
'--' 0j4-0040, *1i.6"rr"t1t upplicable, suhieet te eempli

and{D).

0) Television, microwave and radio communication facilities and transmission towers, as\-/ 
provided in Section t tZ.135

(J) Fire stations for rural fire
and{E.

(K)
Planning Goal is required where

removes more than 10 acres from use as a

commercial forest operation.

(L) Aids to navigation and aviation, subjeet te eempli
(D).

(M) Water intake facilities, related treatment facilities, stations, and distribution lines;

(N) Reservoirs and water
€w(D.

(O) Firearms training facility as uroviaed in OnS tq7.?
.

(P)

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Arnendrnents\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised 177'doc



(Q) Private seasonal accommodations for fee hlnting o99?1i919,.1u!1e.ct to cornpliance with
'='OAR660-006 S€€+i€@andthe

following requirements :

(l) Accornmodations are lirnited to no more than 15 guest rooms as that term is defined in

the Oregon Structural Specialty Code;

(2) Only minor incidental and accessory retail sales are permitted;

(3) Accommodations are occupied temporarily fof th: purpolg gf n"l-llg.guring game bird
\- / 

and big game hunting r"uronr authorized 6y the Or-egon Fish and Wildlife Commission;
and

(4) Other conditions, as deemed appropriate.

(R) New electric transmission lines with right of way widths.of up to 100 feet asspecified in
' 

ORS j22.210. New distribution lines (e.g., gas,-oil, geothermal, telephone, fiber.optic
.uUf")*ittt tigtttt-of-way 50 feet or less iir wiOttr.

and{D}

Attachrnent B

(S) Temporary asphalt and concrete batch plants as acces uses to specific highwaY Projects;

(r) Expansion
@.

of existing airports

(U) The following transportation improvements
:

maybeestablished@

(l)

(2) Reconstruction or modification of public roads and highways involving the removal or

displacernent of buildings but not resulting in the creation of new land parcels.

such as maintenance yards,

Construction of additional passing and
way but not resulting in the creation of

travel lanes requiring the acquisition of right of
new land parcels.

(3) Improvement of public
weigh stations and rest

efficient access to the use

road and highway related facilities,
areas, where additional property or right of way is required but

an atthorized land use to provide safe and
transportation improvements are subject to

not resulting in the creation ofnew land parcels.

(4) Accessory transportation improvements for
. Such accessory

the same requirements applicable to the land use to which they are accessory;

(5) Clrannelization;
(6) Realignment of roads;

(7) Replacement of an intersection with an interchange;

(8) Continuous median turn lane;

(9) New access roads or co
w the road is to

local access to or local traffic on a state These roads shall be lirnited
to two travel lanes. Private access and intersections shall be limited to rural needs or
provide adequate emergency access'

(10) Bikeways, footpaths, and recreation trails not otherwise allowed as a modification or
part of an existing road;

(l 1)Park and ride lots;
(12) Railroad mainlines and branchlines;

(13) Pipelines;
( I 4) Navigation channels;

F:\GROUp\COMMDE\\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77.doc



Attachment B

(15) Replacement of docks and other facilities without significantly increasing the capacity

of those facilities;
(16) Expansions or alterations of public use airports that do not permit seruice to a larger

class of airplanes; and

(17)Transportation facilities, services and improvements other than those listed in this
' ' 

section that serve local travel needs. The travel capacity and Bglfolma.uqq
gGdiil""+*+-.*+.".f facilities and improvements serv_ing local travel needs shall

be lirnited to that necessary to supporl rural iand uses identified in the acknowledged

comprehensive plan or to provide adequate emergency access'

(y) Wind energy systems utilizing a tower and meteorological towers within an adopted
'-' g.o*tn U"ritla#V up to 100 f#t in height_that.alg^nglgommercial power generating

Iacilities, as provid-ed in Sections l12.I35 and ll2.l37. [Amended by ordinance 0e-06]

(v) Private accommodations for occupr edona basis, subj ect to compliance

with
and the fo requirements:

(1) Accommodations lirnited to no more than 15 guest rooms as that term is defined in the

Oregon Structural SpecialtY Code;

(2) Only minor incidental and accessory retail sales are permitted;

(3) Accornmodations occupied temporarily fol-t]t-._q}lpoje of fishing during fishing

seasons authorized by fhe oregon Fish and wildlife commission;

(4) Accommodations must be located within ll4 mlle of fish bearing Class I waters; and

(5) A governing body may impose other appropriate conditions'

(W) Forest managetnent research and experimentation facilities as defined by ORS 526.215 or

where accessory to forest
and{D)

(x) Youth camp. A camp may be established Pursuant to the standards and limitations in

OAR Changes to or expansrons of youth camps established

prior to June 14,
01-10 and ll-031

to the provisions of ORS 2 15. 130. [Amended by ordinances

urban

(1) The hardship is

(3) The appticant a

Ol as useO in tnt sect
an aged or innrm oer

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Arnendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearirig\Attachment B - Revised l77.doc



177.050. GENERAL REVTEW STANDARDS IOAR 660-006-0025(5) atrd-(o!. To ensure

""*p"tiUiftty 
*iifr Ai-G and forest activities, the Planning Director or hearings body shall

deteimine that the proposed use meets the following requirements:

(A) The proposed use will not force a significant change in, or significantly increase the cost of,
' ' u"".pt"d farming or forest practicesbn agriculture or forest lands;

(B) The proposed use will not significantly increase fire hazard or significantly increase fire
'-' gppi"riion costs or significintly increase risks to fire suppression personnel;

Attachment B

(c) written statement

recorded wl or tten contract with county or tts is obtained from

(B) Land divisions creating parcels less than 80 acres in size may only be d for uses

listed in
that those uses ve

Section 177.120

(c)

the land owner which recognizes the rights of adjacent and n-e

forest operations consistenl with the Forest Practices Act and

Subseetiens 177,035(B) and 177,040(l\); (G); (N); and (V).

(D) All other requirements contained in the ComprehensiveTlan or implernentiug ordinances'
'-' in"lrrding bui not lirnited to regulations wtich apply t9 flood hazard areas, development

within tfe Willamette River G-reenway, development in forested areas or development in

significant resource areas, such as riparian or big game habitat.

177.060. LAND DMSION REQUIREMENTS. ln the TCZoningDistrict, the following
standards shall apply:

(A) The minimum lot sr-parcel size is 80 acres; or

(l) The parcel ggated shall not be larger than five acres, except as necessary to_recogntze
' ' p6yri.ut fuffich as roads or sl"ams, in which case thb parcel shall not be larger than

ten (-10) acres; eud

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legistative Amendmentsu023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearingwttachment B - Revised l77 doc



eenselidated ;vith a*lethef pai'eel eensists ef at least 80 aeres:

(Q)The@parcell4at4aeqnot.containing-Jhe.dwelling;isnotentitledtoadwelling' ='un1.r, 
subseqir6ntly a,r by law or goal ana the parqet either:

(a) Meets the minimum l

Attachment B

following

4,1993;

(D) A lancl clivision of a lot or parcel-tla-t.contains two or more dwelkrzgs subject to the
' ' requirements toAR 660-0b6-0026(2)(d) ana OnS ztS.Z80(2X*

(l) At least two dwellings lawfully existed on the lot or parcel prior to November

authorized by law or by change in Goal 4. The property owner
Clerk as required by

(2) Each dwelling complies with the criteria for a replacement dwelling under Section

177.03s(€B);

(3) Except for one lot or parcel, each lot or parcel created under this section is between two

and five acres in size;

(4) At least one dwelling is located on each lot or parcel created under this section; and

(s)

The covenant be unless the

slon ls
shall also record a
Section 177.120.

restriction in the offrce of the Polk County

(6) A lot or parcel may not be divided under this section if an existing dwelling on the lot or

parcel was approved under:

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Heafings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



(a) A statute, an administrative rule or a land_use regulation as defined in ORS 197.015\--l 
ifruti.q"irid removal of the dwelling or that pro-hibited subsequent division of the lot
or parcel; or

(b) A farm use zone provision that allowed both farm and forest uses in a mixed fatm
and forest use zone under Goal 4 (Forest Lands). lAmended by ordinance Il-031

Attachrnent B

within an urban
to the following

(E) A land division tofacilitate aforest practice as defined in ORS 527 .620 that results in a parcel

that does not meet the minimum area requrrement of subsection 177 .060(A). IOAR 660-006-
to demonstrate that

that ulre an

ferthe-zene in otder to conduct the forest practice. created pursuant to thts su

(1) Shal+ Arq not be eligible for siting a new dwelling;

(2) Sha+l-Mafnot serve as the justification for the siting of a future dwelling on other parcels;

(3) Mav not, as a resutt of ft be used to iustifv red*uationorrgzalt4g9f
rcsouqelatrd;-4ud

(a) Sha+l-Mafnot result in a parcel of less than 35 acres, unless the purpose o

drvisramslaexeep+:
(a) acilitate an exchange of lands involving

a govemmental agencY, or
(U) Wtrere ttre purpese ef *e l@llow transactions in which at least one\ / 

participant i, u p"rron with a cumulative ownership of at least 2,000 acres of
forestland in Oregon;-and

If associated with the creation of a parcel where a dwelling is involved, shall not result in a(4)

" apiieval-iei eaeh pareel (Nete: ene yeaiextensiens may be reqt*ested prier te expiratien ef
tti€-approva+

parcel less than the minimum parcel size of the

qeslio!.

Partition alonq an Urban Growth Boundary(G_E)
215.7858)l Aparcel
gtowth boundary and

that is located partially
is designated for urban

within the
uses, may

ciltena

(l) The partition occurs along the urban growth boundary; and

(2) If the parcel contains a dwelling, the parcel must be large enough to support continued

residential use;

(3) If the parcel does not contain a dwelling, the parcel:

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNINC\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachrnent B - Revised l77 doc



Attachrnent B

(a) Is not eligible for a dwelling, except as authorized by ORS 195.120;

(b) May not be considered in approving or denying an application for siting any other

dwelling; and

(") May not be considered in approving or redesigna.tion or rezoning of forestlands

under the acknowledged compreheisive plan and land use regulations, except for a

iedesignatiol o. r.ro"nittg to ailow a public park, open space or other natural

resource use.

(4) The owner of the parcel not containing a dwelling shall record with the County Clerk
an irrevocable dee'd restriction prohibiiing the owner and all successors in interest from
p.rrsuing a cause of action or cluim of relief alleging injury^tqq{u*lng or forest

p;ilid ior which a claim or action is not allowed under ORS 30.936 or 30.937.

[Amended bY Ordinance 19-0ll

177.070. STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS. Dwellings are authorized in the Timber

Co"r"*utio n ZoningDistrict, subject to the siting requirements under Section 177.080 and

177 .090 of the Ordinance, and the following criteria: [Amended by ordinance 23-011

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised 177 doc



Attachment B

(A)SmallTract,Lot-of-RecordDwelling[oAR660-006-00zz(t)@.- -' 
Z-f,iJ_051. C dwelling may be authori"zed on a lot-of-record. To qualify as a lot-of-record,
ihe parcel must meet the following criteria:

(1) The lqlor parcet o+wtriql the dyqttiry was lawtully created and was

acqurr"cl:aird own er as defined in subseo

of ttris section:fal dince prior to January l, 1985;pr

(b) devise or bY intestate

secesslon from"a pe.son $#wUo-u^cqulred and had owned continuously the lot q
tatilrfiJllr€{€a# parcel since prior to January l, 1985.

€€mmeretat k#s
@

(13) The tracton which the dwellin
vaeant;

(a])+f-t!he lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be.sited was part of a tract existi*g,on
' :'Noiember 

4,'Igg3,no dwelling exists onlnother lot or parcel that was part of that

tract;,

(s)

(6)

(7) Whcre
the
into a single

; and

portions
dwelling is sited e++por+io"islat! of a tract,
uneeruprnmen-ewner*t+ie+re consolidated

t*n*"eFhnd.

(8) Authorizationto establish a single-family dwelling under the provisions of this

subsection may be transfened b-y a person who hai qualified under this subsection to

any other person after the effective date of the decision.

(e)

F:\GROUp\COMMDE\APLANNING\Legislative Arnendmentsg023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Healitrg\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



Attachment B

itg IOAR 660-0 06-0027 (2) and
a tract that

A(B) Large Tract Forest Land Dwell
dwelling may be authorized on
following criteria:

(l) The tract is at least 160 sa$iguausacres in size. A tract shall not be considered to

consist of less than 160 acretbe-cause it is crossed by a public road or a waterway; or,

meets

(2) The tract is part-ef-eneewnership;at least200acresin@

A on shall all tracts ate

US to meet the acfeage requlremen ts of this subsection, pursuant to the following
provlslons:
(a) The applicant shall provide evidence that the covenants, conditions and restrictions

form iilopted as lEihibit:rA" ro OAR 660-006 has been recorded with the County

Clerk of ihe county or counties where the property subject to the covenants,

conditions and restrictions is located.

(b) The covenants, conditions and restrictions are irrevocable, unless a statement of
release is signed by an authorized representative of the county or.counties where

the propertfsubje6t to the covenants-, conditions and restrictions is located.

(c) Enforcement of the covenants, conditions_and restrictions ryay be undertaken by
the Department of Land Conservation and Development o1 !V the county or.
counties where the property subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions is

located.
(d) Failure to follow the requirements of this section shall not affect the validity of the

transfer of property or the legal remedies available to the buyers of the propefty

*n*ntnafii rriUi"6t to the civenants, conditions and restrictions required by this

sectiott.

(e) The Planning Director shall maintain a copy of the covenants, conditions and

restrictions frled in the County deed records pursuant to this section and. a map.or

other record depicting tracts which do not qrialify for a siting of a dwelling under

the covenants, condiiions and restrictions filed in the county deed_records pursuant

to this section. The map or other record required by this section shall be readily
available to the public in the Planning Division office'

(C) Srnall Tract "Template" Dwelling [OAR 660-006-0022(i)gudpRS?f5,Js0l. A dwelling
may be authorized on a *aeflOltrpgrqqlthat meets the following criteria:

(l) The tract is less than 60 acres in size;

(2) The tract meets one of the following:
(a) The +raet-lqloruarqe! is Bredo$uatq\Lcomposed of soils that are c^apable of\--l anfiuagfpffiorffiper'acre Berycar of wood fiber if:

(D All or part of at least I I other lots or parcels that existed on January 1., I?9.3, , "are withil a 160 acre square centered-on the center of the subject tract (Note: ll
the tract abuts a road th'at existed asef sn Januaty l, 1993, the measurement
may bJ made by creating a 160-acre rec:tangle thlt is one mile long and one-

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\pLANNING\Legislative Amendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearirrg\Attachment B - Revised l77.doc



(ii) At teast tlrree (3) dwellings existed on January l,
the other lots or Parcels; or

quarter mile wide centered on the center of the

Attachrnent B

tract and thatu-tolhe

1993 and continue to exist on

993 and continue to extst on

exist on

(b)

(c)

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, I
the other lots or parcels; or

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to

the other lots or Parcels'
(3)

(4)

)(2) of this Ordinance
met

f5) ffre fot or narcel witt Ue siteO was ta cstablished

(sg)

(6f) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries may not be used to satisfy the' -- eligibiliiy requirements under this section)'

(78)Any property line adjustment to the lot or-parcel complied with the applicable property
- line adjustment provisions in ORS 92'192.

eAny property line adjustment to the lot or parcel after Ja!ua!y. 1,20.19, did.not have the: 
"if6"t 

6f quatltying the lot or parcel for a dwelling under this section; and

[QIf the lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sitedwas parl.of atract on January 1,

-iOlq,no 
drielling existed on the tract oi that date, and no dwelling exists or has been

approved on another lot or parcel that was part of the tract'

wffi

FICROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsV023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



Attachment B

1, Ne mere tlran one ether drvelling exists er lras been appreved en

(D) Large Tract "Template" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(5) and !nS-2]5J5Ol. A dwelling
' ' -ufb. authorized^ on a tract thaimeets the following criteria:

(l) The tract is 60 acres or larger in size;

(2) The tract tneets one of the following:

lAmended by Ordinance 23-011

composed ofsoils that are capable of
per acre Bgl_jrcal of wood fiber if:

that existed on JanuarY I, 1993,
center of the subject tract.

(a) The traetrlotaruarse! is predaloi-uately
ennlattfproducing more than 85 cu' ft'
(i) All or part of at least 1

are within a 160 acre s

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1, 1993 and continue to exist on

the other lots or Parcels; or

(b) The *ae+lolqruarce! isgeda40i+atqly composed of soils that are capable of
'-' ffi to 8-;.Eper acre pel-year of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or parcels that existed on January l,
7993, are within a 160 acre square centered on the center of the subject tract.

; and

(iD At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to exist on

the other lots or Parcels; or

(c) The trae+lstloruarce! is predolqinatglrlcomposed ofsoils that are.capable of
annuagy j@gflto 4q cu3+eracre pcr-ysa{ of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at le
7993, are within a

ast three (3)
160 acre centered

other lots or parcels that existed on January l,
on the center of tlie subject tract'

; and

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to exist on

the other lots or Parcels; and,

(3)

ree+at+gle'

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Amendrnents\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised l77 doc



Attachment B

ttact.

(45)

(s6)

The-+raef

tract isneTsr*Qieet

deed restrictions IS ed under OAR 6-0027(68 and Section
177 X2) of this Ordinance for ttre ottrer tots or

W,
1; Ne more than ene other dlvelling exists or has been appreved on

lAmended bY Ordinance 23-0ll

maI.
(7) The lot or paro ilg witt be sited was law

(68) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries may not be used to satisfy the eligibility' -' requirements under

(g Any property line adjustment to the lot or parcel complied with the applicable property

line adjustment provisions in ORS 92'192.

OO) Any property line adjustment to the lot or parce.l after luttgt.y 7,2019, did not have the: 
eff6c',t of quatifying the lot or parcel for a dwelling under this section; and

0_1J If the lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was part. of a tract on January 1 ,: 
Z0lg,no d#ellilg existed on the tract on that date, and no dwelling exists or has been

approved on another lot or parcel that was part of the tract.

met.

F:\GROUp\COMMDE\\PLANNING\Legislative AmendmentsVo23\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachrnent B - Revised l77.doc



Attachment B

(al tn exlstence Uefore

(4) Thelotorparcelis @
AL

(Z'r fhe€xisli4ssitslc:ftm[vj]rycllissis occupied bv tlle o

aa

I77.2I0. PERIOD OF VALIDITY FOR RESIDENTIAL USES.

L77,I20. NON.REMONSTRANCE DEED RESTRICTION. PUTSUANt tO OAR 660-006-

oozolOj u.rO oAR 660-006-0029ig5)@), for any dwelling, residential fac_ility, private park,

r.r.tuoit or water impoundment, hoine occupation, olprlv1te fithit:g or hunting
u""o**oOutions appioved undei sections 1i7.035, 171 .040_.and 177 .070, and^partitions

approved under subiections 177.060(B){A'€E{D@(E), the landowner for the property

rfiiff U" iequired to sign and record adi,il-resiriCtion binding the landowner and the landowner's

successors in interestiprohibiting them from pursuing a claim for relief or cause of action

"ii.gi"g 
i"i"ry from fanning or iorest practices for which no action or claim is allowed under

ORS 30.936 to 30.937. [Amended by ordinance ll-031

F:\GROUp\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative Arnendments\2023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised 177 doc



Attachment B

(1) The appticant ma
oftlrc-exlglstpn

il

I77.220. PBRIOD OF VALIDITY FOR NON.RESIDENTIAL DISCRETIONARY USES.

foAR 660-033-01401

(A) A discretionary decision, except for a land division, shall be vali4 for tryo (2) years from.the
effective date 6f tne land use decision. An extension of the validity period shall extend the

validity period for one (i) additional year, if:
(l) The applicant makes a written request for an extension of the development approval

validity period;
(2) The written request is submitted to the Polk County Planning Division, on the form

provided by the Planning Division, prior to the expiration of the approval period;

(3) The applicant states the reasons that prevented the applicant from beginning or
continuing developrnent with the approval period;

(4) The applicant states the reasons that prevented the applicant from beginning or
continuing development during the approval period for reasons for which the applicant
was not responsible.

(B) The Planning Director may authorize additional one-year extensions where the applicable' criteria for t[e decision have not changed. Approval of an extension granted under this
section is an administrative decision, ii not aland use decision as described in ORS 197.015

and is not subject to appeal as a land use decision. IOAR 660-033-0140(1) through (4)]

F:\CROUP\COMMDEV\PLANNING\Legislative ArnendmentsV023\LA 23-03\Public Hearings\BOC Hearing\Attachment B - Revised 177'doc



t

After recording, return to:
Polk County Public Works
820 SW Ash Street
Dallas, OR 97338

Send tax statements to:
Finance Department, Polk County
850 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338

Permanent Right Of Way Dedication &
Tempo rary Gonstruction Easement

Brad R. Haga and Lesli J. Darrow Haga, as tenants by the entiretyo hereinafter called Grantors,

1046 N Gur Club Rd, Independence, OR 97351, convey, grant, and dedicate to POLK COUNTY,

an Oregon municipal corporation, hereinafter called Grantee, a Permanent Right-of-Way

Dedication, which runs with the land, for public road and right-of-way purposes in, upon, and across

all that real property situated within said Polk County, State of Oregon, and more particularly

described, and shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B, Parcel 1, of the attached pages, titled: o'Permanent Right Of Way

Dedication", together with a Temporary Construction Easement over, under, and across the full
width and length of the premises more particularly described, and shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B, Parcel 2, of the attached pages, titled: "Temporary Construction

Easementtt.

Grantor covenants that it is the owner of the above-described property free of all encumbrances

except: Exceptions 1 through 12, noted in the Preliminary Title Report dated December I3, 2022,

and identified hv Order No. 5 47OAM

and will warrant and defend the same against all persons who may lawfully claim the same, except

as shown above.

The true and actual consideration for this transfer and temporary street construction easement is:

Twenfy-two thousand five hundred and 00/too dollars ($22,500.00)

File-2-Haga-Row-&-TcE-Rev-1.0-(2.8.24.Docx Page 1 of 4
Polk county, Safe Routes To School

Gun Club and Hoffman Rd: Sidewalk, Ramp and Crossing lmprovements



,BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRTJMENT, TIIE PERSON TRA}'ISFERRING FEE

TITLE SHOIJLD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSONS RIGITTS, IF AM, LJNDER ORS 195.300,

195.301, AI.ID 195.305 TO 195.336, Al.tD SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON IAWS
2007, SECTIONS 2TO 9 Al.lD 17, CHAPTER 855, ORECION LAWS 2009, Al.lD SECTIONS 2 TO

7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRTJMENT DOESI NOT ALIJOW USE OF TIIE
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRIJMENT IN VIOIATION APPLICABLE I,A}ID USE

LAWS A}.ID REGI.JI.ATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRI.JMENT TIIE
PERSON ACQIJTRTNG FEE TrTLE TO THE PROPERTY SHOIJLD CIIECK WrrH TIIE
APPROPRIATE CITY OR COI.JNTY PLA}.INING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFYTHAT TTIENIT OF

LAI{D BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFT.'LLY ESTABLISTIED LOI OR PARCEL AS

DEFINED IN ORS 92.OIO OR 215.010, TO \IERIFY THE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR

PARCEL TO DE1ERMINE AY LIMTS ON LAWSTIITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST

PRACTICES AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AD TO LJNIQIJE ABOUT TIIE RJGIITS OF

NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS IF AI.IY IJNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301, Al.lD 195.305 TO

195.336 A}.ID SECTIONS 5 TO 1I, CHAPTER 424 OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 A}'ID

17, CHAPIER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, A}ID SECTIONS 2TO 7 ,CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS
2010.u

The Temporary Construction Easement shall be effective upon execution by Grantee and shall

remain in effect for a maximum of (2) TWO YEARS from the date executed by Grantee. The rights

granted herein shall be exercised only for and during the time of the initial construction through

iompletion of construction. This easement shall automatically terminate without the need for further

action by either party upon the completion of construction.

To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, Grantee will
indemnify and hold harmless Grantor, their heirs, and assigns from claims for injury to person or

property that result from the negligence of Grantee, its agents, or employees in the construction,

operation, or maintenance of the project. This instrument, and the covenants and agreements

contained in this instrument, shall inure to the benefit of and be binding and obligatory upon the

heirs,,executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

Grantee assumes no liability for any hazardous waste on or from this Property. Grantor, their

successors and assigns, agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Grantee, its officers,

agents, and employees against any and all liabilities, damages, penalties, losses, claims, demands,

aitions, suits, and judgments (including attorney fees and costs), and any costs or expenses incurred

resulting from the presence of hazardous waste onto or from the Property, including any and all costs

associated with clean up or remediation that may be required. This provision shall not apply to a

release of hazardous waste onto or from the Property caused by the officers, agents, or employees of
Grantee. Any action taken pursuant to this provision shall not constitute an admission of liability or

waiver of any defenses to liability. "Hazardous Waste" has the same meaning as provided in Oregon

Revised Statutes 466.005, as may be amended.

Grantee, upon completion of the initial construction, shall restore all hardscapes (gravel, concrete,

asphalt, curbing) located in the Temporary Construction Easement acquisition area (that are

disturbed by the project activity) to an "as good or better" condition as they were prior to the work.

File-2-Haga_ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0-(2.8.24.docx Page 2 of 4



,

It is understood and agreed that delivery of this easement is hereby tendered and that the terms and

obligations hereof shall not become binding upon Grantee unless and until accepted and approved

hereon in writing for the Grantee, by its authoized agerft.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed the foregoing effective as of the date

written below.

GRANTOR:

Brad R. Haga and Lesli J. Darrow Haga, as tenants by the entirety

nAncrA PrintName: LeS L' f" od-Lh*+PrintName

srATE OF OREGON )
ss

County

onthis [t aav or{?brr.rarU before me personally appeared Brad R. Haga

and Lesli J. Darrow Haga. to me knofun to be the individuals described in and who executed

the foregoing instrument and acknowledged that they signed the same as their free and

voluntary act, and in the capacity and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal

", ?alh

N

M

State of Oregon
TIELCRASST"EFOX

NOTARY PUBLIC. OREGoI{
cot Mtsstotrl No. 103887,1

Public

File-2-Haga-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0-(2.8.24.docx Page 3 of 4



I

GRANTEE

Dated this of ,2024

ACCEPTED on behalf of the Public and Polk County, Oregon:

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF' COMMISSIONERS

Jeremy Gordon, Chair

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner

Approved as to Form:

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

File_2-H aga_ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0-(2,8.24.docx Page 4 of 4



POLK COUNTY SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

JANUARY 17,2023
OWNER: BRAD R. HAGA & LESLIJ. DARROW

POLK COUNTY PROJECT NO. 20-29

TAX LOT 8420 00901
FILE NO. 02

PAGE 1. OF 3

EXHIBIT "A"

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 SPOUTH, RAN6E

4 WEST OF THE WILTAMETTE MERIDIAN, CIW OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNTY, OREGON, AND SEING A

PORTION OF THAT PROPERTY CONVEYED TO BRAD R. HAGA & LESLIJ. DARROW, PER DEED DOCUMENT

NO. 2022-004765, POLK COUNTY DEED RECORDS, SAID TRACT LYING ALONG NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD AS

SHOWN ON 5URVEY NUMBER C513568 AND PARTITION PLAT 2AZ2-OOL6 POLK COUNTY RECORDS. SAID

NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD AVENUE CENTERIINE

A ROADWAY COMMONLY KNOWN AS NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD, LOCATED ]N THE SOUTHWEST AND

NORTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 sOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN,

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNW, OREGON, BEINC MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED A5 FOLIOWS:

coMMENCtNG AT A FOUND AND HELD 1-112 INCH ALUMINUM CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION

WITH HOFFMAN ROAD, HAVING AN ENGINEERS STATION OF 10+00.00; THENCE SOUTH 00'04'33" WEST

816.83 FEET TO A t-L/Z |NCH ALUMINUM CAP MARKED "PROJECT DELIVERY GROUP" PER THE PLAT OF

QUAIL CROSSING AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH NORTHGATE DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING

SOUTH OO'04,33" WEST 560.30 FEET TO THE C:NTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH MARIGOLD DRIVE AND

THE POINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION HAVING ENGINEERS STATION 23+77.!3,

THE BASIS OF BEARING OF THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION IS OREGON

NORTH, NAD 83 (2011.) EPOCH 2010.00, INTERNATIONAL FEET

UNITS, PER OPUS

RENEWS: 12;31t2421

4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RO. STE A

PORTLAND, OR.97225
PH; {503)34s-0328 WWW.SFLANDS.coM

PROFE
REG

1g

JUNE 
,I3. 

?OO8

JERED MCGRATH

SE,F Land Services



POLK COUNry SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

JANUARY 17,2023
OWNER: BRAD R. HAGA & LESLIJ. DARROW

POLK COUNW PROJECT NO. 20-29

TAX LOT 8420 00901

FrtE NO.02

PA6E 2 OF 3

SAID PORTION LYING EASTERLY OF THE FOTLOWING DESCRIBED LINE.

PARCET- 1(11 FOOT WIDE PERMANENT RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATIONI

STATION TO STATION WESTERLY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERLINE

14+90.00 TO 16+25.00 31.00 FEET

EXCEPTING THSREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT'OF'WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD.

CONTAINS 1332 SQUARE FEET OR O.O3l ACREs MORE OR LESS.

PARCEI -2 (VARIABLE WIDTH IEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTI

STATION TO STATION WESTERTY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERI.INE

14+90.00 TO 15+30.88

15+30.88 TO 15+64.99

15+64.99 TO 16125.00

32.50 FEET

35.00 FEET

32.50 FEET

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT'OF-WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD AND PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED ABOVE.

CONTAINS 301. SQUARE FEET OR O.OO7 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SEE THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 
,'B",FILEOI, ATTACHED AND MADE A PART HEREOF.

4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A

PORTLAND, OR.97225

PH: (503) 345-0328 WWW.SFLANDS.COMS,ttF Land Services



EXHIBTT ''B''
FILE 02

FOUND AND HELD
ALUMINUM CAP AT CL
OF ROADWAYS

BASIS OF FIARINGS;
oRtGCIN N0RTH, NAD83/20',: t
EPOCH 2O1O.OO PIR NGS OPUS 1O+OO HOFFMANROAD

PARCEL 1 . PARTITTON PLAT 2022.0016

5TA: 14+90.00 J2.50' (

1 INCH - 3O FEET -*--l

PARCEL 1

PERMANENT

.c)lo++llol-
I

I

Fl o
Rq
if , SC)-JB; d^', 3,O

!?
I

I

I

I

RIGHT OF WAY

STA: 15 .30.88 36.00'

1,50'

FILE NO. 02
TAX MAP & LOT 8.4.20 00901

oWNER: BRAD R. HAGA & LESLI J. DARRoW
DEED DOC.: 2A22'0A4765

1046 N GUN CLUB RD
INDEPENDENCE, OR 97351

5,00'

5TA: 15+64.99 36.00'

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION .
EASEMENT

oo
+(o

ott tstL cRog5\NG
-

STA: 16+25.00 32.50'

LOT 34

LEGEND:

PARCTL 1 PARCSL 2
ARTA OT PERMANTNT
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEOICA]ION
13J2 SOUARE FEET

ARTA OF TTMPORARY CONS|RUCTION EASEMTNT
301 SOUARE FEFI'

PAGE 3 OF 3 SEE ATTACHED LEGAL DTSCRIPTION 
.'IXHIBIT 

A" '!..'{)ia,:; . .l: : t...!.- i..';2.,.:r;

4858 SW SCHOL:_S FERRY RD

STI A, PORTLAND, QR 97223
(503) J45*0328

S{rF Land Servic€s
www.sflonds.com

inf o@sflonds.com

TXHIBIT 
,,8"

TAX MAP 8,4,20
TAXLOT OO9O1

PROJECT NO. 20*29
SICTION 20 T.85, R.4W, W.M

CITY OF INDTPTNDENCE
COU



After recording, return to:
Polk County Public Works
820 SWAsh Street
Dallas, OR 97338

Send tax statements to:
Finance Department, Polk County
850 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338

Permanent Right Of Way Dedication &
Tempo rary Gonstruction Easement

Richard Lawrence Lauer and Marcy M. Lauero Trustees of the Richard Lawrence Lauer and

Marcy M. Lauer Revocable Trust dated June 16, 1998, hereinafter called Grantors, 880 N Gun

Club Road, Independence, OR 9735l,convey, grant, and dedicate to POLK COIINTY, an Oregon

municipal corporation, hereinafter called Grantee, a Permanent Righrof-Way Dedication, which

runs with the land, for public road and right-of-way purposes in, upon, and across all that real

property situated within said Polk County, State of Oregon, and more particularly described, and

shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B of the attached pages, titled: o'Permanent Right Of Way Dedication",

together with a Temporary Construction Easement over, undet, and across the full width and lenglh

of the premises more particularly described, and shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B of the attached pages, titled: "Temporary Construction Easemento'.

Grantor covenants that it is the owner of the above-described property free of all encumbrances

except : Exceptions 1 - 10. of the Preliminary Title Report dated: December 13,2022, and identified

by OrderNo. 573473AM

and will warrant and defend the same against all persons who may lawfully claim the same, except

as shown above.

The true and actual consideration for this transfer and temporary street construction easement is:

Fifteen Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty and oo/roo Dollars ($15'950.00).

File-1-Lauer-RoW-&-TCE-Rev-1.O.docx Page 1 Of 4
Polk County, Safe Routes To School

Gun Club and Hoffman Rd: Sidewalk, Ramp and Crossing lmprovements



''BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, TIIE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE

TITLE SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON'S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300,

195.301, AND 195.305 TO T95.336, AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER424, OREGON LAWS

2007, SECTIONS 2TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO

7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF TIIE
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION APPLICABLE LAND USE

LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT THE
PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO TI{E PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH TI{E
APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THENIT OF

LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL AS

DEFINED IN ORS 92.OIO OR 215.010, TO VERIFY TI{E APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR

PARCEL TO DETERMINE AY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST

PRACTTCES AS DEFTNED IN ORS 30.930, AD TO IIMQTJE ABOLIT THE RIGHTS OF

NEIGI{BORING PROPERTY OWNERS IF A].[Y UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301, AND 195.305 TO

195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER424 OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND
17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2TOT,CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS
2010."

The Temporary
remain in effect

Construction Easement shall be effective upon execution
for a maximum of (2) TWO YEARS from the date executed

by Grantee and shall
by Grantee. The rights

granted herein shall be exercised only for and during the time of the initial construction through

completion of construction. This easement shall automatically terminate without the need for further

action by either party upon the completion of construction.

To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, Grantee will
indemniff and hold harmless Grantor, their heirs, and assigns from claims for injury to person or
property that result from the negligence of Grantee, its agents, or employees in the construction,

operation, or maintenance of the project. This instrument, and the covenants and agreements

contained in this instrument, shall imre to the benefit of and be binding and obligatory upon the

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

Grantee assumes no liability for any hazardous waste on or from this Property. Grantor, their

successors and assigns, agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Grantee, its officers,

agents, and employees against any and all liabilities, damages, penalties, losses, claims, demands,

actions, suits, andjudgments (including attomey fees and costs), and any costs or expenses incurred

resulting from the presence of hazardous waste onto or from the Properly, including any and all costs

associated with clean up or remediation that may be required. This provision shall not apply to a
release of hazardous waste onto or from the Property caused by the officers, agents, or employees of
Grantee. Any action taken pursuant to this provision shall not constitute an admission of liability or

waiver of any defenses to liability. "Hazardous Waste" has the same meaning as provided in Oregon

Revised Statutes 466.005, as may be amended.

Grantee, upon completion of the initial construction, shall restore all hardscapes (gravel, concrete,

asphalt, curbing) located in the Temporary Construction Easement acquisition area (that are

disturbed by the project activity) to an "as good or better" condition as they were prior to the work.

File_1_La uer_ROW_&_TCE_Rev_1.0.docx Page 2 of 4



It is understood and agreed that delivery of this easement is hereby tendered and that the terms and

obligations hereof shall not become binding upon Grantee unless and until accepted and approved

hereon in writing for the Grantee, by its authorized agent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed the foregoing effective as of the date

written below.

GRANTOR:

Richard Lawrence Lauer and Marcy M. Lauero

Trustees of the Richard Lawrence Lauer and

Marcy M. Lauer Revoca!ffi t.u#

nilu
dated June 16, 1,998

.Trustee wBv:

Print: Print
/, u"/

Ltvt /
srATE OF OREGON )

County of o
I

I
SS

acknowledged that they signed the same as their free and voluntary act, and in the

capacity and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

GIVEN under my hand and offrcial seal:

t:i[,rt 1 . )

OFFICIAL STAMP
MONICA MARIE DOBFIS

NOTARY PUBLIC . OREGON
coMMtSStoN NO. 1003900

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES SEPTEMBER 27, 2024

N of Oregon

Mycommissionexpir", ?- Z Z-7aZ/

Fi le_1_La u er-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0.docx Page 3 of 4



GRANTEE:

Dated this _ of ,20-

ACCEPTED on behalf of the Public and Polk County, Oregon:

Approved as to X'orm:

Morgan Smith
County Counsel

POLK COI]NTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Jeremy Gordon, Chair

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner

File_1 _La uer-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0.docx Page 4 of 4



POLK COUNTY SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

JANUARY 17,2023
OWNER: RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER & MACY M, LAUER,

TRUSTEES OF REVOCABLE TRUST

POLK COUNTY PROJECT NO. 20-29

TAX LOT 084208D 03900

FILE NO. O1

PAGE 1OF 3

EXHIBIT'A"

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST qUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 SOUTH, RANGE

4 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNry OREGON, AND BEING A

PORTION OF THAT PROPERTY CONVEYED TO THE RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER & MACY M. LAUER,

TRUSTEES OF REVOCABLE TRUST, PER DEED DOCUMENT NO. 20]-1-000422, POLK COUNTY DEED

RECORDS, SAID TRACT LYING ALONG NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD AS SHOWN ON SURVEY NUMBER CSl-3568

AND PARTITION PLAT 2022-001.6 POLK COUNTY RECORDS, SAID NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD CENTERLINE IS

DESCRIBED IN THIS DESCRIPTION AS FOLLOWS:

NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD AVENUE CENTERTINE

A ROADWAY COMMONLY KNOWN AS NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST AND

NORTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN,

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNTY, OREGON, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCTNG AT A FOUND AND HELD 1-112 INCH ALUMINUM CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION

WITH HOFFMAN ROAD, HAVING AN ENGINEERS STATION OF 1O+OO.OO; THENCE SOUTH OO.O4,33,,WEST

816.83 FEET To A !-1./2 |NCH ALUMINUM cAP MARKED "PRoJECT DELIVERY GROUP" PER THE PLAT OF

QUAIL CROSSING AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH NORTHGATE DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING

SOUTH OO'0433" WEST 560.30 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH MARIGOLD DRIVE AND

THE POINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION HAVING ENGINEERS STATION 23+77.L3,

THE BASIS OF BEARING OF THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION IS OREGON

NORTH, NAD 83 (2011) EPOCH 2010.00, INTERNATIONAL FEET

UNITS, PER OPUS

RENEWS: 1213112024

4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A

PORTLAND, OR.97225
PH: (503) 34s-0328 WWW.SFLANDS,coM

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND R

JUNE 13, 2OOB

JERED MCGRATH

R

StrF Land Services



POLK COUNTY SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

JANUARY 17,2023
OWNER: RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER & MACY M' LAUER,

TRUSTEES OF REVOCABLE TRUST

POLK COUNTY PROJECT NO. 20-29

TAX LOT 08420BD 03900

FILE NO. 01

PAGE 2 OF 3

SAID PORTION LYING EASTERLY OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE.

PARCEL- 1 (11 FOOT WIDE PERMANENT RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION)

STATION TO STATION WESTERTY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERTINE

20+50.00 TO 22+00.00 31.00 FEET

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT-OF.WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD.

coNTAINS 1s02 SQUARE FEET OR 0.034 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

PARCEL- 2 (VARIABLE WIDTH TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT)

STATION TO STATION WESTERLY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERLINE

20+50.00 TO 21+31.13

21+31.13 TO 21+50.18

21+50.1-8 TO 22+00.00

33.50 FEET

36.00 FEET

33.50 FEET

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD AND PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED ABOVE.

CONTAINS 3S9 SQUARE FEET OR O.OO9 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SEE THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT "8,, FILE 01, ATTACHED AND MADE A PART HEREOF

4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A

PORTLAND, OR.97225
PH: (503) 345-0328 WWW.SFLANDS'COMS,trF Land ServicEs



EXHIBIT ''B''
FILE 01

FOUND AND HELD ALUMINUM
CAP AT CL OF ROADWAYS

BASIS OF BEARINGS:
OREGON NORTH, NAD83/2011 EPOCH 2010.00
PER NGS OPUS

HOFFMAN ROAD
0+00

31'
7{

QUAIL CROSSING

Lor r STA: 20+50.00 JJ.50'

2.50'

PARCEL 1

PERMANENT

'sieh
z
-58

RIGHT OF WAY

I O
+
NOq

s
()
:J
o
e

STA: 21 +31 .1 3 36.00' (

FILE NO. 01 Fn
t)
+
O

LJ

OWNER: RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER & MACY M.

LAUER, TRUSTEES OF REVOCABLE TRUST
DEED: 2011-000422

TAX LOT:08420BD 03900
880 N GUN CLUB RD

INDEPENDENCE, OR 97351 5.00,

STA: 21 +50.18 36.00' (

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

')o +

31' oo
+NN

STA: 22+00.00 J5.50' (

PP 2015-009
35

LEGEND
1 INCH :30 FEET

PARCEL 1 PARCEL 2
AREA OF PERMANENT
RIGHT_OF-WAY DEDICATION
1 502 SQUARE FEET

AREA OF TIMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
389 SQUARE FEET

PAGE 3 OF J SEE ATTACHED LEGAL DESCRIPTION EXHIBIT 'A,' 23982-FILE 01.dw

4B5B SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD.
STE A, PORTLAND, OR 97225
(s03) 345-0328

www.sf londs.com
info@sf londs.com

StF Land Servic€s
EXHIBIT 

,'B''

TAX MAP 8.4.208D
TAXLOT OO9OO

PROJECT NO. 20_29
SECTION 20 T.8S, R.4W, W.M

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE
POLK COUNTY, OREGONDATE

JAN. 17, 2023
JOH NO.

20 01 909
FIELD

AM
CHLC

.il
DRAWN

ECW
Kt.U
M



The undersigned assign and transfer to:

Payee Name:
Payee Address:

ASSIGNMENT OF SALE PROCEEDS

Marcy M. Lauet
PO Box lSS,Independence, OR 97351

The net proceeds Fifteen Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars ($15,9-50.00) due from Polk

County, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon (County), in connection with the sale of certain

property to the County; provided, however, that this assignment shall be subject to claims which the County

may have in the proceeds from said sale, or any prior assignments. If for any reason the sale of said property

cannot be closed, then this assignment shall be null and void.

A- 7-
Lauer, Trustee Date

,2 .7_ 4ael
M. Trustee Date

File No.:

Grantor:

Section:

Richard Lawrence Lauer and Marcy M. Lauer,

Trustees of the Richard Lawrence Lauer and
Marcy M. Lauer Revocable Trust dated Iune L6,

L998

Gun Club Road and Hoffman Road

01

FAP No.:

N/A

N/A
Polk

Assignment of Proceeds, Standard (2065) Page 1 of 1 B ot m 7 34-1024L Rev 03/1 6/2015



1

MODIFICATION TO RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER AND MARCY M.
LAUER REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST, ORIGINALLY DATED JUNE 16, 1998

WHICH WAS AMENDED AND RESTATED ON OCTOBER 5,1999

We, RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER and MARCY M. LAUER, Trustors andTrustees of
the RICHARD LAWRENCE LAUER AND MARCY M. LAUER REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST'

do hereby modiff and amend the amended and restated Trust Agreement dated October 5, 1999 as

set forth herein.

We understand that the provisions of the amended and restated Trust dated October 5, t999
do not conflict with the provisions of this amendment and shall remain in full force and effect.

APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEE AND SUCCESSOR TRUSTEE. During the lifetimes of
Riohard Lawrence Lauer and MarcyM. Lauer, they shall serve as Co-Trustees. Upon the

death or incapacity of one of them the other shall serve individually. Upon the death or
incapacity ofboth ofthem, then Michael Lauer shall serve as first Successor Trustee. In the

event that Michael Lauer can not serve then Kevin Sampson shall serve as alternate

Successor Trustee. No bond shall be required of any Trustee or Successor Trustee. The

Trustoe shall have all authority under tho provisions of the Oregon Uniform Trust Code as

described in ORS Chapter 130, together with any similar applicable provisions under

California Code as it may rolate to any California assets.

,) APPLICATIONOFLAW. OregonLawshallapplyundertheprovisionsofOregonUniform
Trust Code as described in ORS Chapter I 30 as it relatos to any assets controlled by the Trust

within the State of Oregon. California Law shall apply to any assets held by the Trust as set

forth and controlled within the State of California, In the event of any conflict of laws, the
provisions of the Oregon Uniform Trust Code as desoribed in ORS Chapter t 30 will prevail.

DTVISION OF TRUST AFTER DEATH OF DECEASED SETTLOR AS DESCRIBED IN
ARTICLE 5.3 OF THE ORIGINAL TRUST AGREEMENT, Under the provisions of
Article 5.3 of our original Trust Agreement, the Trust is to be divided upon the death of the
first settlor into a Survivor Share, Marital Deduction Share and the Non-Marital Share. At
the time of execution of this amendment the status of the Federal Estate Tax System

including applicable exemptions is uncertain. kr addition, the State of Oregon currentlyhas

"decoupled" fromthoFederal Systemandthefutureofthe Oregon StateTa:r Systemis also

uncertain. At the time of execution ofthis amendment, the Trust and Non-Trust assets ofthe
settlors are'below the applioable Federal Estate exemption amounts and therefore it would
be inefficient to divide Trust assets into the three shares as described above. Therefore, it
is the intent of the settlors that in the event that at the time of the death of the first settlor, the

total assets of the settlor's estate is less than the then applicable Federal Estate Tax
exemption limit and/or any applicable State Estate Tax limit, whichever is lower, the Trust
estate will not be divided into separate shares and will be administered under the provisions

of the Survivor Share as described in the original Trust Agreement except as may be

modified herein. If, however, the overall settlor's estate including Trust and Non-Trust
assets is then over the then applicable Federal exemption limit and State Estate Tax

3

,fu '*"1 
of 3 - TRUSr MODIFICATION



exemption lirnit then the Trust will be provided into separate shares as described in Article
5.3, Page 11 of the Trust Agreement dated Ootober 5, 1999 and administered as described
hereunder except for final dishibution as described below.

ARTICLE 6.4. Upon the death ofthe surviving settlor, the Trustee shall hold, administer.and

distibute the assets of the Blpass Trust andlor the Survivor's Trust in the event that the
Trust assets are not divided as described above as follows:

A. A1l Trust assets shall be equally divided between Michael Lauer and Kevin Sampson,
shme and share alike. No Trust assets shall be distributed to Robert Lauer under any
circumstances. In the event that Michael Lauer should predecease the surviving
settlor, his share shall be distributed to Tiffany Michelle Lauer in his stead. In the
event that Kevin Sampson should predecease the surviving settlor, his share shall be
distributed to Michael Lauer, or if Michael Lauer has also predeceased his share shall
be distributed to Tiffany Miohelle Lauer. In the event that Michael Lauor, Kevin
Sampson and Tiffany Michelle Lauer have all predeceased the surviving settlor, then
the Trust assets shall be distributed to the American Society for the Prevention of
Crueltyto Animals (ASPCA), or their successor in interest.

DATED this (z day of

4.

2An.

STATE OF OREGON

County of Polk

On the date last above, personally appeared the
Trustor and Trustee of the Richard Lawrence
Trust, and acknowledged the foregoing

LAUER

named RICHARD LAUER, Settlor,
Marcy M. Lauer Revocable Living
voluntary act and deed. Before me:

otary Public for Oregon
Commission Expires: tt

)
)
)

ss.

OFFlCIAL SEAL
JOHN EDWARD HASBROOK
NOTARY PUBTIC . OREGON

NO. 441977

Paga} of 3 - TRUST MODIFICATION



MARCY LAUER

STATE OF OREGON

County of Polk

On the date last above, porsonally appeared the above named MARCY M. LAUER' Settlor,
Trustor and Trustee of the Richard Lawrence Marcy M. Lauer Revocable Living
Trust, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument voluntary act and deed. Before me:

DATED th i" 6 day of *Jatltto&Y ,2011.

Public for Oregon
Commission Expires: &t

ss.
)
)
)

/3
OFFICIAL SEAL

JOHN EDIYARD HA9EROOK
NOTARY PUBLIC - OREGON
OOMMIS$ION NO, ,f41977

Page 3 of3 - TRUST MODIFICATION



After recording, return to:
Polk County Public Works
820 SW Ash Sheet
Dallas, OR 97338

Send tax statements to:
Finance Department, Polk CountY
850 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338

Permanent Right Of Way Dedication &
Temporary Construction Easement

Thomas T. Mesdag, hereinafter called Grantor, conveys, grants, and dedicates to Polk County, a

municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter called Grantee, a Permanent Right-of-

Way Dedication, which runs with the land, for public road and right-of-way purposes in, upon, and

across all that real property situated within Polk Countyo Oregon, and more particularly described,

and shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B of the attached pages, titled: o'Permanent Right Of Way Dedication",

together with a Temporary Construction Easement over, under, and across the fulI width and length

of the premises more particularly described, and shown, as follows:

See Exhibit A and Exhibit B of the attached pages, titled: "Temporary Construction Easement".

Grantor covenants that they are the owner ofthe above-described property free of all encumbrances

except: General and Special Exceptions #l-13. shown in the Preliminar.v Title Report dated:

August 14. 2023. and identified by Order No. 573464AM, and will warrant and defend the same

against all persons who may lawfully claim the same, except as shown above.

The true and actual consideration for this Dedication and Easement is: Twentv Two Thousand

Five Hundred and ooltoo dollars ($22.500.00).

File-3-Mesdag-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-1.0-sMT.docx Page 1 of 4
Polk County, Safe Routes To School

Gun Club and Hoffman Rd: Sidewalk, Ramp and Crossing lmprovements



*BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTN\IG THIS INSTRI.JMENT, TIIE PERSON TRA}'ISFERRING FEE

TrrLE SHOULD TNQIJIRE ABOUT THE PERSONS RIGIITS, IF AI{Y, UNDER ORS 195.300,

195.301, AI.ID 195.305 TO 195.336,A1.ID SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS
2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 ANID 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO

7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRI.JMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF TIIE
PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS INSTRI.JMENT IN VIOLATION APPLICABLE LA}'ID USE

LAWS ANID REGULATIONS. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT TIIE
PERSON ACQI.JIRING FEE TITLE TO TIIE PROPERTY SHOI,JLD CIIECK WITH THE

APPROPRIATE CITY OR COIJNTY PLA}.INING DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT TIIE NIT OF

LAT.ID BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFIJLLY ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL AS

DEFINED IN ORS 92.OIO OR 215.010, TO VERIFY TIIE APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR

PARCEL TO DETERMINE AY LIMTS ON LAWSUITS AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST

PRACTICES AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AD TO IJNIQIJE ABOUT TIIE RIGIITS OF

NEIGIIBORING PROPERTY OWNERS IF A}.TY I,JNDER ORS 195.300, 195.30I, AND 195.305 TO

Lg5.336Al.ID SECTIONS 5 TO l l, CHAPTER 424 OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 TO 9 ANID

17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, Al.lD SECTIONS 2TOT,CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS

2010."

The Temporary Constnrction Easement shall be effective upon execution by Grantee and shall

remain iniffect for a maximum of (2) TWO YEARS from the date executed by Grantee. The rights

granted herein shall be exercised only for and during the time of the initial construction through
-ompletion 

of constuction. This easement shall automatically terminate without the need for further

action by either party upon the completion of construction.

To the extent permitted by the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, Grantee will
indemniff and hold harmless Grantor, their heirs, and assigns from claims for injury to person or

property that result from the negligence of Grantee, its agents, or employees in the construction,

operation, or maintenance of the project. This instrument, and the covenants and agreements

contained in this instrument, shall inure to the benefit of and be binding and obligatory upon the

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

Grantee assumes no liability for any hazardous waste on or from this Property. Grantor, their

successors and assigns , agree to defend, indemniff and hold harmless the Grantee, its officers,

agents, and employees against any and all liabilities, damages, penalties, losses, claims, demands,

actions, suits, and judgments (including attorney fees and costs), and any costs or expenses incurred

resulting from the presence of hazardous waste onto or from the Property, including any and all costs

associated with clean up or remediation that may be required. This provision shall not apply to a

release of hazardous waste onto or from the Property caused by the officers, agents, or employees of
Grantee. Any action taken pursuant to this provision shall not constitute an admission of liability or

waiver of any defenses to liability. "Hazardous Waste" has the same meaning as provided in Oregon

Revised Statutes 466.005, as may be amended.

Grantee, upon completion of the initial construction, shall restore all hardscapes (gravel, concrete,

asphalt, curbing) located in the Temporary Construction Easement acquisition area (that are

OisturUeA by the project activity) to an 'oas good or better" condition as they were prior to the work.

Fi le-3-Mesd ag-ROW-&-TcE-Rev-l.0-SMT.docx Page 2 of 4



It is understood and agreed that delivery of this easement is hereby tendered and that the terms and

obligations hereof shall not become binding upon Grantee unless and until accepted and approved

hereon in writing for the Grantee, by its authoize'dagent.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed the foregoing effective as of the date

written below.

GRANTOR:

Thomas T. Mesdag

PrintName: flttt trts & Date: &*t
srATE OF OREGON )

ss

County of

GTVEN under my hand and offrcial seal:

$A,ui* )

on this S[^u", "t Fa]otu*a\r024, before me personally appeared rhomas T.

Mesdaglto me t 
"o*o 

to Ur tn. inai"i&ral described in and who executed the foregoing

instrument and acknowledged that he signed the same as his free and voluntary act, and in
the capacity and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.

N

My

for of OregonNELGRAS8LEFOX
NOTARY PUSLIC.OREGON
coMMrssrolr No. 1033E7r

File_3-M esdag-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-l.0-SMT.docx Page 3 of 4



GRANTEE

Datedthis of 2024

ACCEPTED on behalf of the Public and Polk County, Oregon:

POLK COTINTY BOARD OF' COMNIISSIOIYERS

Jeremy Gordon, Chair

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Craig Pope, Commissioner

Approved as to Form:

Morgan Smith, County Counsel

File-3-Mesdag-ROW-&-TCE-Rev-l.0-SMT.docx Page 4 of 4



POLK COUNW SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

SEPTEMBER 28,2023
OWNER: THOMAS T. MESDAG

POLK COUNTY PROJECT NO. 20-29

TAX LOT 8420 00900
FILE NO. 03

PAGE 1OF 3

EXHIBIT'A,,

ATRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 SPOUTH, RANGE

4 WEST OF THE WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN, CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNTY, OREGON, AND BEING

DESCRTBED AS ADJUSTED pROpERTy "A" (EXH|B|T "C"l OF THAT PROPERTY OWNED BY THOMAS T.

MESDAG IN PLA DEED DOCUMENT NO. 2023-0OL498, POLK COUNTY DEED RECORDS AND A PORTION OF

PARCEL 1 OF PARTITION PLAT 2022-00T6, SAID TRACT LYING ALONG NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD AS SHOWN

ON SURVEY NUMBER CS13568 AND SAID PARTITION PLAT 2022-0015 POLK COUNTY RECORDS, SAID

NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD CENTERLINE IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

NORTH GUN CIUB ROAD AVENUE CENTERLINE

A ROADWAY COMMONLY KNOWN AS NORTH GUN CLUB ROAD, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST AND

NORTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 8 SOUTH, RANGE 4 WEST, WILLAMETTE MERIDIAN,

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, POLK COUNTY, OREGON, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

coMMENCtNG AT A FOUND AND HELD 1-112 |NCH ALUMINUM CAP AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION

W|TH HOFFMAN ROAD, HAVING AN ENGINEERS STATION OF 10+00.00; THENCE SOUTH 00'04'33" WEST

815.83 FEET TO A 1,-Ll2 |NCH ALUMTNUM CAP MARKED "PROJECT DELIVERY GROUP" PER THE PLAT OF

QUATL CROSSING AT THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH NORTHGATE DRIVE; THENCE CONTINUING

SOUTH OO'04,33" WEST 560.30 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE INTERSECTION WITH MARIGOLD DRIVE AND

THE POINT OF TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIPTION HAVING ENGINEERS STATION 23+77.T3.

THE BASIS OF BEARING OF THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION IS OREGON

NORTH, NAD 83 (2OLtl EPOCH 2010.00, INTERNATIONAL FEET

UNITS, PER OPUS

DIGITATLY SIGNED

RENEWS: 1213112022

4858 5W SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A
PORTLAND, OR.97225
PH: (503) 345-0328 WWW.SFLANDS.COM

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JUNE 13,2OOB

JERED MCGRATH
9 PLS

5&F Land Services



POLK COUNTY SRTS GRANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

SEPTEMBER 28,2023
OWNER: THOMAS T. MESDAG

POLK COUNTY PROJECT NO.20-29
TAX LOT 8420 00900

FILE NO. 03

PAGE 2 OF 3

SAID PORTION LYING EASTERLY OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE.

pARCEt - 1 (VARIABIE WIDTH PERMANENT RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATIONI

STATION TO STATION WESTERLY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERLINE

10+39.75 TO L0+49.65 40.94 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 10 FOOT RADIUS CURVE, 15.54 FEET

THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 89"02'54" WITH A CHORD OF SOUTH

45'03',03" EAST 14.02 FEET TO 31.00 FEET

10+49.55 TO 15+00.00 31.00 FEET

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT.OF-WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD.

CONTAINS 5O2O SQUARE FEET OR 0.115 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

PARCEL - 2 (VARIABLE WIDTH TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTI

STATION TO STATION WESTERTY OFFSET DISTANCE FROM CENTERLINE

10+38.00 TO 10+49.84 ,

tO+49.84 TO 15+00.00

42.40 FEET IN A STRAIGHT LINE TO 32.50 FEET

32.50 FEET

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION LYING WITHIN THE EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY OF NORTH GUN

CLUB ROAD AND PARCEL 1 DESCRIBED ABOVE.

CONTAINS 709 SQUARE FEET OR 0.015 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SEE THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT'8" FILE 01, ATTACHED AND MADE A PART HEREOF.

4858 5W SCHOLLS FERRY RD. STE A
PORTLAND, OR.97225
PH: (503) 345-0328 WWW.SFLANDS.coM

5E F Land Services



EXHIBIT ''B''
FILE 03

FOUND AND HELD ALUMINUM CAP
HOFFMAN RD T CL OF ROADWAYS

O
{ NB9'34'30"W

STA: 1O+38.00 42.40' (RT)
0+00

STA: 10+39.75
STA: 10+49.65
STA: 10+49.84

40.e4' (RT) L= 1 5.54', R:10.00'
A=89"02'54"
CHORD: 14.02'
s45'03'03"E

31 .00'
32.50' rOto

-+trl-
I

+
I

Iroo-l+rN

PARCEL 1

PERMANENT
RIGHT OF WAY

FILE NO. 03
O\I/NER: THOMAS T. MESDAG

ADJUSTED PROPERry''A' (EXHIBIT "C')
OF PLA DEED DOC.: 2023-00'1498

A PORTION OF PARCEL 1 - PARTITION
PLAT NO. 2022-0016

TAX MAP & LOT 8,4,20 OO9OO

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

150

31'

0

STA: 15+00.00 32.50'

oo
+
rO

LEGEND:

PARCEL 1

1 INCH : 1OO FEET
BASIS OF BEARINGS:
oREGON NORTH, NAD83/201 1 EPoCH 2010.00
PER NGS OPUS

PARCEL 2w AREA OF PERMANENT
RIGHT_OF-WAY DEDICATION
5O2O SQUARE FEET m AREA OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

709 SQUARE FEET

PAGE 3 OF 3 SEE ATIACHED LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
,,EXHIBIT 

A,' 23982-rlLl 03.dws

4858 SW SCHOLLS FERRY RD

STE A, PORTLAND, OR 97225
(503) 34s-o328

www.sf londs.com
info@sf londs.com

SErF Land Services
TXHIBIT ''B

TAX MAP 8.4.20
TAXLOT OO9OO

PROJECT NO. 20_29
SECTION 2O T.BS, R.4W, W,M

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE
POLK COUNTY, OREGONFI ELD

AM
DRAWN

ECW&TLB
CHLCKLU

JLM



Contract  Review Sheet

Staff Contact:  

Title:  

Department:

Consent Calendar Date:  

Contractor Name:  

Address:  

Background/Discussion: 

    Thru: 
City, State, Zip: 
Effective Dates - From: 
Contract Amount: $ 

Fiscal Impact:  

Recommendation:  

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:   

Name:  

Name:  

Name:

E-mail:  

E-mail:  

E-mail:

Source Selection: 
Sole Source 

Competitive Quotes 

Formal Bid

Request for Proposals

Personal Services

Special/Exempt Procurement (explain below): 

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________

Dana Goodale FCO

SBMH Supervisor

Dallas School District - amended

111 SW Ash St.

Dallas, OR 97338
July 1, 2023 June 30, 2024

443,787

✔

The purpose of this Contract is to provide School Based Mental Health services to students and 
families of Dallas School District through the ongoing employment of 6 FTE Mental Health Staff, 5 
stationed full time in schools and 1 floating Resource Connector.

We amended the contract amount to reflect 3 Associate level staff for 12 months, 1 Therapist level 
staff for 12 months, 1 Therapist level staff for 4 months, and 1 Therapist level staff for 5 months.

Without this contract we would not be able to provide School Based Mental Health services to 
students and families of Dallas School District.

 

goodale.dana@co.polk.or.usDana Goodale

Jennifer Segovia segovia.jennifer@co.polk.or.us



Polk County Contract No. 24-34 (Amendment 1 to 23-169)















 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  3558 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  March 13, 2024 

 Contractor Name:  Jannell Werner 

 Address:  5936 SE 17th Loop 

 City, State, Zip:  Portland, OR 97080 

 Effective Dates - From:  February 01, 2024  Through:  June 30, 2025 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Jannell Werner has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County Behavioral 
 Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a new contract with Jannell Werner to provide prescriber services to Polk County 
 individuals. Jannell Werner meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to work 
 with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The 2024-25 FY Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Jannell Werner. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



Polk County Contract No. 24-35











































 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  3558 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  March 13, 2024 

 Contractor Name:  Oregon Health Authority 

 Address:  500 Summer Street NE 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97301 

 Effective Dates - From:  January 01, 2024  Through:  June 30, 2025 

 Contract Amount:  $265,826.00 

 Background: 

 The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) to provide Choice Model 
 Services to residents of Polk County by way of a grant. IGA 026114 is the initial award from the 
 state and may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to reflect changes to funds 
 and/or programs that are made as part of the grant. 

 Discussion: 

 This agreement provides funding for Choice Model Services for the next 18 months, which provides 
 oversight and care coordination for adult individuals with SPMI and helps offset service costs 
 associated with that population. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The total for this agreement is $265,826.00, which is a slight increase in the amount of $14,000, but 
 has a neutral financial impact as the 2024-25 Behavioral Health budget was prepared in anticipation 
 of this funding and there has been an increase in population served. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign agreement 026114 with the Oregon Health Authority. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 



Agreement Number 44300-00026114 

STATE OF OREGON 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate 
formats such as Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other 
electronic formats. To request an alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-
oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange 
for the alternative format. 

This Agreement is between the State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority, 
hereinafter referred to as “OHA,” and 

Polk County 
182 SW Academy Street, Suite 33 

Dallas, OR 97338 
Attention: Noelle Carrol 
Telephone: 503-831-1726 

E-mail address: carroll.noelle@co.polk.or.us

hereinafter referred to as “County.” 

Work to be performed under this Agreement relates principally to OHA’s 

Health Systems 
BH Intensive Services, Housing and Social Determinants of Health 

500 Summer Street NE 
Salem, Oregon 97301 

Agreement Administrator: Michael Oyster or delegate 
Telephone: 503-410-2303 

E-mail address: michael.w.oyster@dhsoha.state.or.us

Polk County Contract No. 24-37



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 2 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

1. Effective Date and Duration. 
This Agreement shall become effective on the date this Agreement has been fully executed 
by every party and, when required, approved by Department of Justice or on January 1, 
2024, whichever date is later. Unless extended or terminated earlier in accordance with its 
terms, this Agreement shall expire on June 30, 2025.  Agreement termination or expiration 
shall not extinguish or prejudice either party’s right to enforce this Agreement with respect to 
any default by the other party that has not been cured. 

2. Agreement Documents. 
a. This Agreement consists of this document and includes the following listed exhibits 

which are incorporated into this Agreement: 
(1) Exhibit A, Part 1: Statement of Work 
(2) Exhibit A, Part 2: Payment and Financial Reporting 
(3) Exhibit A, Part 3: Special Provisions 
(4) Exhibit B: Standard Terms and Conditions 
(5) Exhibit C: Insurance Requirements 
(6) Exhibit D:  (RESERVED) 
(7) Exhibit E: Financial Pages 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the subject 
matter in it; there are no understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or 
written, regarding this Agreement that are not specified herein. 

b. In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this 
Agreement, the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. 
The precedence of each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, 
listed from highest precedence to lowest precedence: this Agreement without 
Exhibits, Exhibits B, A, C and E 

c. For purposes of this Agreement, “Work” means specific work to be performed or 
services to be delivered by County as set forth in Exhibit A. 

3. Consideration. 
a. The maximum not-to-exceed amount payable to County under this Agreement, which 

includes any allowable expenses, is set forth in “Exhibit E, Financial Pages” OHA 
will not pay County any amount in excess of the not-to-exceed amount for 
completing the Work, and will not pay for Work until this Agreement has been signed 
by all parties. 

b. OHA will pay only for completed Work under this Agreement, and may make interim 
payments as provided for in Exhibit A. 

4. Contractor or Subrecipient Determination. 
In accordance with the State Controller’s Oregon Accounting Manual, policy 30.40.00.104, 
OHA’s determination is that: 

 County is a subrecipient   County is a contractor   Not applicable 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #(s) of federal funds to be paid through this 
Agreement: NA 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 3 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

5. County Data and Certification. 
a. County Information.  This information is requested pursuant to ORS 305.385. 

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION: 

County Name (exactly as filed with the IRS): \coname1\ 

 

Street address: \add11\ 

City, state, zip code: \add21\ 

Email address: \email1\ 

Telephone: \phone1\ Fax: \fax1\ 
 
Proof of Insurance:  County shall provide the following information upon submission of the signed 
Agreement, all insurance listed herein and required by Exhibit C, must be in effect prior to 
Agreement execution. 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance Company: \workerscompcompany1\ 

Policy #: \workerscompnumber1\ Expiration Date: \workerscompexpdate1\ 
b. Certification.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, by signature on this 

Agreement, the County hereby certifies under penalty of perjury that: 
(1) The County is in compliance with all insurance requirements of this Agreement 

and notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, County shall deliver to the 
OHA Agreement Administrator (see page 1 of this Agreement) the required 
Certificate(s) of Insurance within 30 days of execution of this Agreement.  By 
certifying compliance with all insurance as required by this Agreement, County 
acknowledges it may be found in breach of the Agreement for failure to obtain 
required insurance.  County may also be in breach of the Agreement for failure 
to provide Certificate(s) of Insurance as required and to maintain required 
coverage for the duration of the Agreement; 

(2) The information shown in this Section 5a. “County Information”, is County’s 
true, accurate and correct information; 

(3) To the best of the undersigned’s knowledge, County has not discriminated 
against and will not discriminate against minority, women or emerging small 
business enterprises certified under ORS 200.055 in obtaining any required 
subcontracts; 

(4) County and County’s employees and agents are not included on the list titled 
“Specially Designated Nationals” maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets 
Control of the United States Department of the Treasury and currently found at: 
https://www.treasury.gov/resource-center/sanctions/SDN-
List/Pages/default.aspx; 

Polk County

182 SW Academy Street

Dallas, OR 97338

hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us

503-623-9289 503-831-1726

Craven-Woods Insurance

07/01/202423LPLKC



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 4 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

(5) County is not listed on the non-procurement portion of the General Service 
Administration’s “List of Parties Excluded from Federal procurement or Non-
procurement Programs” found at: https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/; 

(6) County is not subject to backup withholding because: 
(a) County is exempt from backup withholding; 
(b) County has not been notified by the IRS that County is subject to 

backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or 
dividends; or 

(c) The IRS has notified County that County is no longer subject to 
backup withholding; and 

(7) County Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) provided to OHA is 
true and accurate. If this information changes, County is required to provide 
OHA with the new FEIN within 10 days. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 5 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

EACH PARTY, BY EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT, HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES 
THAT IT HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT, UNDERSTANDS IT, AND AGREES TO BE 
BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
COUNTY: YOU WILL NOT BE PAID FOR WORK PERFORMED PRIOR TO 
NECESSARY STATE APPROVALS 
 
6. Signatures. This Agreement and any subsequent amendments may be executed in several 

counterparts, all of which when taken together shall constitute one agreement binding on all 
parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart.  Each copy 
of the Agreement and any amendments so executed shall constitute an original. 

 
Polk County 
By: 
 
   
\signer1\  \name1\ 
Authorized Signature  Printed Name 
   
\title1\  \date1\ 
Title  Date 
 
State of Oregon, acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority pursuant to ORS 190 
By: 
 
   
\signer2\  \name2\ 
Authorized Signature  Printed Name 
   
\title2\  \date2\ 
Title  Date 

Approved by: Director, OHA Health Systems Division 
By: 

   
\signer3\  \name3\ 
Authorized Signature  Printed Name 
   
\title3\  \date3\ 
Title  Date 

 
Approved for Legal Sufficiency: 
 
Via email by Jeff Wahl, Assistant Attorney General on December 27, 2023; email in agreement file. 
 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 6 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Part 1 
Statement of Work 

 
1. Purpose: County shall provide oversight and care coordination of Individuals whose county 

of responsibility falls within Polk County, or who are members and Individuals assigned to 
County by OHA to ensure access to services consistent with the clinical needs of the 
Individual and the purpose of the Choice Model Services. County of responsibility is defined 
as the county in which an Individual most recently maintained a postal address, or if 
residence is otherwise indeterminate, the county where the Individual was placed on an 
involuntary hold. Incarceration or placement in the state hospital or a licensed 24-hour 
facility is not to be used to make this determination. OHA requires that the County meets the 
highest standards prevalent in the industry or business most closely involved in providing the 
appropriate goods or services. 
 

2. Services to be provided by County shall include: Where referenced in this Contract, 
“Contract Settlement” means OHA’s reconciliation of amounts OHA actually disbursed to 
County against amounts that OHA is obligated to pay to County for services provided under 
this Contract. Contract Settlement can occur following the end of a biennial period, upon 
termination or expiration of this Contract. County shall provide the following: 

 
a. Service Name:  CHOICE MODEL SERVICES 

Service ID Code:  MHS 06 

(1) Service Description 

(a) For purposes of this Agreement the following definitions apply: 
i. Acute Care Psychiatric Facility or Acute Care Psychiatric Hospital 

means a hospital that provides 24 hour-a-day psychiatric, multi-
disciplinary, inpatient or residential stabilization, care and treatment, 
for adults ages 18 years of age or older with serious psychiatric 
disabilities. 

ii. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) means an evidence-based 
practice designed to provide comprehensive treatment and support 
services to Individuals with SPMI. ACT is intended to serve 
Individuals who have serious functional impairments and who have 
not responded to traditional psychiatric outpatient treatment. ACT 
services are provided by a single multi-disciplinary team, which 
typically includes a psychiatrist, a nurse, a therapist, supported 
employment, and a peer, and are designed to meet the individual needs 
of each Individual and to help keep the Individual in the community 
and out of a structured service setting, such as residential or hospital 
care. ACT is characterized by: 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 7 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

A. Low client to staff ratios; 

B. Providing services in the community rather than in the office; 
C. Shared caseloads among team members; 
D. 24-hour staff availability; 
E. Direct provision of all services by the team (rather than           
            referring Individuals to other agencies); and 
F. Time-unlimited services. 

iii. Behavioral Health Treatment means treatment for mental illness, 
substance use disorders, or problem gambling. 

iv. County of Responsibility (COR) means the county in which an 
Individual most recently maintained a postal address, or if 
residence is otherwise indeterminate, the county where the 
Individual was last present before being transported to an acute 
psychiatric hospital such as where the Individual was placed on a 
police officer custody, director’s custody or transport custody. 
Incarceration or placement on an involuntary hold, at OSH or a 
licensed 24-hour facility, is not to be used to make this 
determination. OHA will determine COR if there is a disagreement 
between counties. 

v. Discharge Plan means a written document prepared by the County 
beginning at admission and updated through the Discharge Planning 
process which identifies housing, treatment, and other services needed 
to support the continuity of care necessary to maintain the Individual’s 
stability in the community. This report shall combine information from 
the Individual, OSH, community providers, recovery plan, and other 
resources. 

vi. Discharge Planning means a process that begins upon admission to 
OSH or licensed residential setting and is based on the presumption 
that, with sufficient supports and services, all Individuals can live in an 
integrated community setting. Discharge planning is developed and 
implemented through a person-centered planning process in which the 
Individual has a primary role in creating, and is based on principles of 
self-determination. 

vii. Exceptional Needs Care Coordination (ENCC) means a process-
oriented activity to facilitate ongoing communication and 
collaboration with the Individual to arrange Services appropriate to 
their needs, preferences and choices. These functions include, but are 
not limited to: 

A. Facilitating communication between the Individual, family, 
natural supports and community resources, involved providers 
and agencies; 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 8 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

B. Organizing, facilitating and participating in interdisciplinary 
team (IDT) meetings when the Individual is in the community 
in collaboration with CCO Care Coordinators; 

C. Emphasizing discharge planning in IDTs at OSH by 
collaborating with IDT members, providing recommendations 
in collaboration with CCO Care Coordinators towards 
discharge preparation and sharing revisions of the Discharge 
Plan; 

D. Providing for continuity of care by creating linkages to and 
managing transitions between levels of care and transitions for 
adults with SPMI; and 

E. In collaboration with CCO Care Coordinators, facilitating all 
referrals from OSH with the goal of providing oversight and 
care coordination for Adults with SPMI. 

viii. Face-to-Face means a personal interaction where both words can be 
heard and facial expressions can be seen in person or through 
telehealth services where there is a live streaming audio and video. 

ix. Home and Community-Based Services (HCBS) means the 1915 (i) 
state Medicaid plan amendment that allows for the use of Medicaid 
funding for home-based habilitation, behavioral habilitation, and 
psychosocial rehabilitation services for qualified Medicaid recipients 
who have been diagnosed with a mental illness. 

x. Home CCO means enrollment in a Coordinated Care Organization 
(CCO) in a given service area, based upon an Individual’s most recent 
permanent residency, determined at the time of original Oregon Health 
Plan eligibility determination or most current point of CCO enrollment 
prior to hospitalization per enrollment requirements in OAR 410-141-
3500 through OAR 410-141-3870 and OAR 410-141-3815. 

xi. Individual or Client means, with respect to a particular Service, any 
person who is enrolled in that Service, in whole or in part, with 
payments provided under this Agreement. 

xii. In-Reach Services means services delivered by community-based 
service providers to an Individual while at the Oregon State Hospital 
(OSH) or Acute Care Psychiatric Hospital to: 
A. Maintain the Individual’s connection to ongoing services and 

supports; 
B. Assist with stabilization and discharge planning; and 

xiii. Collaborate with CCO Care Coordination to provide transition support 
for Individuals determined Ready to Transition from the OSH or 
determined appropriate for diversion from OSH while in an Acute 
Care Psychiatric Hospital. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 9 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

xiv. Integrated Setting means a setting that enables Individuals with 
disabilities to interact with non-disabled persons to the fullest extent 
possible. Integrated settings are those that provide Individuals with 
disabilities opportunities to live, work, and receive services in the 
greater community, like Individuals without disabilities. Integrated 
settings are: 
A. Located in mainstream society; 
B. Offer access to community activities and opportunities at 

times, frequencies, and with persons of an Individual’s 
choosing; 

C. Afford Individuals choice in their daily life activities; and, 

D. Provide Individuals with disabilities the opportunity to interact 
with non-disabled persons to the fullest extent possible. 

xv. Long-Term Psychiatric Care (LTPC) means inpatient psychiatric 
services delivered in an Oregon State-operated Hospital after: 
A. Usual and customary care has been provided in an acute 

inpatient hospital psychiatric care setting; 
B. The Individual continues to be unsuccessful in an alternative 

setting; and 
C. The Individual continues to need psychiatric hospitalization 

services.  

xvi. Oregon State Hospital (OSH) means any campus of the Oregon 
State Hospital system. 

xvii. Peer Delivered Services means community-based services and 
supports provided by peers, and peer support specialists, to 
Individuals or family members with similar lived experience. 
These services are intended to support Individuals and families, to 
engage Individuals in ongoing treatment, and to live successfully in 
the community. 

xviii. Ready To Transition (RTT) means that, consistent with the scope 
of the order of commitment, the Interdisciplinary Team (IDT) has 
determined that a State hospital level of care is no longer required 
as described in OAR 309-091-0035. 

xix. Recovery means a process of change through which Individuals 
improve their health and wellness, live a self-directed life, and 
strive to reach their full potential. 

xx. Recovery Plan means a written document created by the 
Individual and facilitated by a peer support specialist, or an 
alternative as determined by the Individual, to help identify the 
Individual’s strengths (e.g. knowledge gained from dealing with 
adversity, personal or professional roles, talents, personal traits) 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 10 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

that can act as resources to the Individual and the Individual’s 
recovery planning team in pursuing personal and treatment goals.  

xxi. Serious and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI) means the current 
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual, Fifth Edition (DSM-V) of the 
American Psychiatric Association diagnostic criteria, incorporated by 
reference herein, for at least one of the following conditions, as a 
primary diagnosis for an adult 18 years of age or older: 
A. Schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders; 
B. Major depressive disorder; 
C. Bipolar disorder; 
D. Anxiety disorders limited to OCD (Obsessive Compulsive 

Disorder) and PTSD (Post Traumatic Stress Disorder);  
E. Schizotypal personality disorder; or 
F. Borderline personality disorder. 

xxii. Supported Housing means permanent housing with tenancy rights 
and support services that enables Individuals to attain and maintain 
integrated affordable housing. Support services offered to Individuals 
living in supported housing are flexible and are available as needed 
and desired, but are not mandated as a condition of obtaining tenancy. 
Individuals have a private and secure place to make their home, just 
like other members of the community, with the same rights and 
responsibilities. Supported Housing enables Individuals with 
disabilities to interact with individuals without disabilities to the fullest 
extent possible. Supported Housing is scattered site housing. To be 
considered Supported Housing, for buildings with two or three units, 
no more than one unit may be used to provide Supported Housing for 
Individuals with SPMI who are referred by OHA or its contractors, 
and for buildings or complexes with four or more units, no more than 
25% of the units in a building or complex may be used to provide 
Supported Housing for Individuals with SPMI who are referred by 
OHA or its contractors. Supported Housing has no more than two 
Individuals in a given apartment or house, with a private bedroom for 
each Individual. If two people are living together in an apartment or 
house, the Individuals must be able to select their own roommates. 
Supported Housing does not include housing where providers can 
reject Individuals for placement due to medical needs or substance 
abuse history. 

xxiii. Voluntary by Guardian means that an Individual’s legal guardian has 
signed consent for admission to an acute psychiatric facility, Oregon 
State Hospital, or licensed residential facility. 

(b) Individuals Served 
i. County shall offer oversight and care coordination for Adults with 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 11 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

SPMI, as follows: 

A. Facilitate access to quality, individualized community-based 
services and supports so that Individuals with SPMI are served 
in the most integrated setting possible; and 

B. Facilitate effective utilization of services and facility-based 
care in the community. 

C.  Identify anticipated capacity needs across the system and 
communicate with Coordinated Care Organizations (CCO), 
Community Mental Health Programs (CMHP), and Oregon 
Health Authority (OHA). 

ii. The County’s service area shall align primarily with the Home 
CCO and when no CCO is identified or the Home CCO has 
multiple MHS 06 Services contractors, then the service area will 
align with the COR as follows: 
A. Home CCO is the designated service area for Individuals 

who are: 
I. CCO enrolled members; 
II. CCO members at the time of referral to Oregon State 

Hospital (OSH); or 
B. COR is the designated service area for Individuals who are: 

I. Fee-For-Service Medicaid Eligible; 

II. Uninsured, underinsured, not eligible for Medicaid, 
or have exhausted Medicaid services, including those 
who meet the criteria for the Citizen Alien Waived 
Medical Program; 

C. Undocumented; 

D. Privately insured; 
E. Funded through Veterans Administration; or 

F. Other as approved by OHA. 

iii. Service Population 
A. Individuals who meet the following criteria, shall be offered  

Services through MHS 06 Services: 
I. Have been civilly committed and admitted to OSH 

under ORS Chapter 426; 
II. Have been civilly committed under ORS Chapter 426 

and are referred to or at risk of being referred to OSH; 
III. Admitted to OSH under guardian authorization; secured 

or non-secure licensed residential facility as defined in 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 12 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

ORS 443.400 including licensed programs designated 
specifically for young adults in transition; 

IV. Are residing in a licensed adult foster home, as defined 
in ORS 443.705, due to SPMI; or 

V. As directed by OHA. 
B. Individuals who, due to SPMI, meet the following criteria shall 

also be offered Services per County’s policies and procedures 
in Choice Model Services: 
I. Are placed on outpatient commitment pursuant to ORS 

426.127; 
II. Are placed in assisted outpatient treatment pursuant to 

ORS 426.133; 
III. Have transitioned from civil commitment pursuant to 

ORS 426.060 within the past 12 months; 
IV. Have been found to lack fitness to proceed pursuant to 

ORS 161.370; 
V. Will end jurisdiction within the next six months or 

ended jurisdiction under the Psychiatric Security 
Review Board (PSRB) within the past 12 months; 

VI. Have been determined service eligible through the 
Department of Human Services (DHS), either through 
Aging & People with Disabilities (APD) or 
Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities (I/DD) 
Divisions to support the Behavioral Health Treatment 
service needs of Individuals determined service eligible 
for APD or I/DD; or 

VII. Are at risk of meeting the above criteria without 
supports offered through Choice Model Services. 

(c) Services 
County shall provide: 
i. Exceptional Needs Care Coordination as appropriate to the needs, 

preferences, and choices of each Individual. 

ii. Coordination of behavioral Health Treatment services and supports not 
funded through other sources including, but not limited to: 
A. Medicaid; 
B. Medicare; 
C. County Financial Assistance Agreements; or 
D. CCO Contracts. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 13 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

iii. Activities to remove barriers and facilitate access to integrated services 
and supports, which are not funded through other sources. Especially 
when Individuals are being discharged from OSH and when 
establishing residence in Supported Housing. These activities may 
include, but are not limited to: 
A. Room and board payments; 
B. Rental assistance, security deposits, and application fees; 
C. Utility payments and deposits; 
D. Prescription or over-the-counter medications and medical 

supplies not covered by Medicaid or other sources; 
E. Transportation; 

F. Activities to facilitate the securing of guardianship services, 
including but not limited to: 
I. Paying the costs of: 

(A) Court hearings to determine the necessity, 
continuation, or termination of a guardianship. 

(B) Guardianship services to make decisions related 
to overseeing the care and supervision of an 
Individual. 

II. If guardianship is expected to continue beyond a 
transitional period of time (6 months or less), then other 
payment options should be sought in order to maintain 
guardianship services. 

G. Activities to facilitate the securing of  representative payee 
services; or 

H. Peer Delivered Services. 

iv. Support CCO Care Coordination efforts to gather documents such as 
the Community Questionnaire, develop a preliminary discharge plan 
from OSH and sign for final authorization for the Long-Term 
Psychiatric Care referral. 

v. Other services and supports necessary to facilitate provision of 
services in the most integrated setting and the prevention of admission 
to higher levels of care. 

(2) Performance Requirements 
(a) County shall provide the following services: 

i. Exceptional Needs Care Coordination for Individuals served in Choice 
Model Services to facilitate access to services in the most integrated 
setting appropriate to the Individual’s needs and strengths, including: 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 14 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

A. Care coordination and Discharge Planning for Individuals 
receiving services in licensed residential programs, even when 
placed outside the County’s service area. 

B. Facilitate access to community-based rehabilitative mental 
health treatment services that are recovery-oriented, culturally 
responsive, and geographically accessible. 

C. Facilitate access to Peer Delivered Services. 

D. Serve as the Single Point Of Contact (SPOC) (OAR 309-019-
0225) for all referrals from OSH to Assertive Community 
Treatment as described in OAR 309-019-0225 (25) Definition 
of SPOC in ACT Admission Process 309-019-0248. 

E. Collaborate with CCO Care Coordination concerning Acute 
Care Psychiatric Hospitals to divert Individuals approved for 
LTPC from admission to OSH and toward community-based 
services and supports, when indicated to be appropriate. 

F. Collaborate with the DSH, APD and I/DD Divisions to support 
the Behavioral Health Treatment service needs of Individuals 
determined service eligible for APD or I/DD. 

G. Coordinate the transition from forensic services for Individuals 
ending jurisdiction under the PSRB within six months and who 
will be served in Choice Model Services. 

H. Coordinate the transition from forensic services for Individuals 
found to lack fitness to proceed pursuant to ORS 161.370 and 
who will be enrolled in Choice Model Services; and 

I. Serve as a resource for community partners and service 
agencies in locating local community-based Behavioral Health 
Treatment services and supports. 

ii. In collaboration with CCO Care Coordinators, facilitate transition for 
Individuals with SPMI out of hospital settings and into the most 
integrated community settings by completing the following: 
A. Hold a Face-to-Face meeting with each Individual within the 

County’s service area being referred to OSH from Acute Care 
Psychiatric Hospitals prior to being referred but no later than 
72 hours from the date of approval for LTPC to identify 
services and supports necessary for community-based 
stabilization and facilitate access to those services and supports 
in order to divert Individuals from admission to OSH whenever 
possible. 

B. Hold a Face-to-Face meeting with each Individual within the 
County’s service area who is civilly committed, and to the 
extent practical for Voluntary by Guardian, admitted to OSH 
within seven calendar days of admission. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 15 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

C. Participate in OSH IDT meetings for each Individual within the 
County’s service area to update the Discharge Plan and to 
coordinate appropriate community-based services and supports. 

D. Arrange, advocate, and coordinate appropriate In-Reach 
Services from CCOs and community providers who are 
delegated or identified as having responsibility for providing 
mental health services upon discharge. 

E. Facilitate development of an initial Discharge Plan within 10 
calendar days of admission to OSH and update the plan as 
appropriate after each IDT or discharge planning meeting with 
the Individual. 

F. Coordinate and facilitate access to community-based resources 
of those civilly committed at OSH to support discharge from 
OSH within 72 hours of being determined RTT whenever 
possible for Individuals with SPMI who have been civilly 
committed, ensuring that: 
I. No less than 90% of Individuals shall be discharged 

within 20 calendar days of being determined RTT. 
II. If not discharged within the above timeframe then each 

Individual shall be discharged no later than 60 calendar 
days from the date placed on RTT. 

G. Collaborate with OSH to verify that entitlement enrollments 
(e.g. Medicaid, Medicare, SSI/SSDI) are in place and 
anticipated to be active upon discharge. 

H. For Individuals not receiving Choice Model Services directly, 
collaborate and serve as a resource to support Discharge 
Planning for Individuals: 
I. Determined services eligible for APD or I/DD; 

II. Under the jurisdiction of ORS 161.370 to determine 
fitness to proceed; or 

III. Under the jurisdiction of the PSRB.  
 
(3) Reporting Requirements 

None 
 

(4) Special Reporting Requirements 
(a) County shall prepare and electronically submit, to  

hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, the following written reports using forms 
and procedures as prescribed on OHA’s website, located at 
http://www.oregon.gov/OHA/HSD/AMH/Pages/Reporting-
Requirements.aspx. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 16 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

i. Maintain for reference but not submit policies and procedures for 
enrollment in Choice Model Services.  

ii. Monthly Choice Model Client Status Reports shall be submitted no 
later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject month 
during the term of the Agreement for review and approval. 

iii. Any other reports as mutually agreed upon between OHA and the 
County. 

(b) Upon OHA’s identification of any deficiencies in the County’s performance 
under this Agreement, including failure to submit reports as required, failure 
to expend available funding, or failure to meet performance requirements, 
County shall prepare and submit to OHA within 30 calendar days a Corrective 
Action Plan (CAP) to be reviewed and approved by OHA. The CAP must 
include, but is not limited to, the following information: 
i. Reason or reasons for the CAP based on OHA’s concerns and the 

County’s review. 
ii. The date the CAP will become effective with timelines for 

implementation. 
iii. Planned action already taken to correct the deficiencies as well as 

proposed resolutions to address remaining deficits identified with 
oversight and monitoring by OHA; and 

iv. Proposed remedies, short of termination, should County not come into 
compliance within the timeframe set forth in the CAP. 

(5) Payment Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of Performance and 
Reporting Requirements Procedures 
OHA provides payments for MHS 06 Services in two different ways, through Part A 
and Part C payments. The payment type is identified in Exhibit E, “Financial Pages,” 
on MHS 06 lines in which column “Part ABC,” contains an “A” for Part A or “C” for 
Part C payments. OHA will make payments for MHS 06 Services claims submitted 
through either Part A or Part C payments, for non-Medicaid-eligible Services. 
Provider is not entitled to payment for Part A or Part C payments (or both) in 
combination with Medicaid payments for the same Service, during the same time 
period or date of Service for the same Individual. County and Service Providers shall 
maintain compliance with OAR 410-172-0600 to 410-172-0860, OAR 943-120-0310, 
and OAR 943-120-0320. 
(a) Payments made to County or Service Provider are subject to the following: 

i. OHA shall not authorize in aggregate, under this “Payment 
Calculation, Disbursement, and Confirmation of Performance and 
Reporting Requirements Procedures” section, payments requested for 
MHS 06 Services in excess of the contractual Not-to-Exceed amount. 
Total aggregate funding means the total of all funding authorized in 
Exhibit E, “Financial Pages” before reducing payments to account for 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 17 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

client resources received by the County or Service Provider from an 
Individual, or from another on behalf of the Individual, in support of 
Individual’s care and Services provided. The monthly rate will be 
prorated for any month in which the Individual does not receive 
Services for a portion of the month. Funding will be reduced (offset) 
by the amount of funding received by the Service Provider from the 
Individual, the Individual’s health insurance provider, another person’s 
health insurance provider under which Individual is also covered, or 
any other Third-Party Resource (TPR) in support of Individual’s care 
and Services provided: 

 
ii. County understands and agrees that funding under Part A or Part C 

may be reduced by Agreement amendment to the extent County’s 
billings under MMIS for Part B payments exceed the allocated total 
aggregated budget as set for in Exhibit E, “Financial Pages;” and 
 

iii. OHA is not obligated to provide payment for any MHS 06 Services 
that are not properly reported in accordance with the “Reporting 
Requirements” and “Special Reporting Requirements” sections above 
or as required in an applicable Specialized Service Requirement by the 
date 60 calendar days after the earlier of expiration or termination of 
this Agreement, termination of OHA’s obligation to provide funding 
for MHS 06 Services, or termination of County’s obligation to include 
the Program Area in which MHS 06 Services fall within its Services. 
 

(b) The Part A payments will be calculated, disbursed, and confirmed as follows: 
i. Calculation of Payments: OHA will provide payments for MHS 06 

Services provided under a particular line of Exhibit E, “Financial 
Pages,” containing and “A” in column “Part ABC,” from payments 
identified in that line in an amount equal to the rate set forth in that 
line of the Financial Pages during the period specified in that line. The 
total of OHA payments for all MHS 06 Services delivered under a 
particular line of Exhibit E, “Financial Pages,” containing and “A” in 
column “Part ABC,” shall not exceed the total payments for MHS 06 
Services as specified in that line of the Financial Pages and are subject 
to the limitations described herein. 

ii. Disbursement of Payments: Unless a different disbursement method is 
specified in that line of the Exhibit E, “Financial Pages,” OHA will 
disburse the Part A payments for MHS 06 Services provided under a 
particular line of the Financial Pages containing and “A” in column 
“Part ABC” to County in substantially equal monthly payments during 
the period specified in that line of the Financial Pages, subject to the 
following: 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 18 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

A. OHA may, upon written request of County, adjust monthly 
payments; 

B. Upon amendment to the Financial Pages, OHA shall adjust 
monthly payments as necessary, to reflect changes in the 
payments shown for MHS 06 Services provided under that line 
of the Financial Pages;  

C. OHA may, after 30 calendar days (unless parties agree 
otherwise) written notice to County, reduce the monthly 
payments based on under-used payments identified through 
MOTS and other reports in accordance with the “Reporting 
Requirements” and “Special Reporting Requirements” sections 
above or applicable special conditions. 

D. OHA is not obligated to provide payments for any MHS 06 
Services that are not properly reported in accordance with the 
“Reporting Requirements” and “Special Reporting 
Requirements” sections above or as required in an applicable 
Specialized Service Requirement by the date 60 calendar days 
after the earlier of expiration or termination of this Agreement; 
termination of OHA’s obligation to provide payments for MHS 
06 Services; or termination of County’s obligation to include 
the Program Area in which MHS 06 Services fall in its 
Services; and 

E. OHA will reduce the payments made for MHS 06 Services 
delivered under a particular line of Exhibit E, “Financial 
Pages,” containing an “A” in column “Part ABC,” by the 
amount received by a Provider of MHS 06 Services, as 
payment for the cost of the Services delivered to an Individual 
from the Individual, the Individual’s health insurance provider, 
another person’s health insurance provider under which 
Individual is also covered, or any other Third Party Resource 
(TPR) in support of Individual’s care and Services provided. 
County is obligated to report to OHA, be email at  
hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, any TPR payments no 
later than 30 calendar days following receipt of payment by 
County or Service Provider. 

(c) The Part C payments will be calculated and disbursed as follows: 
i. Calculation of Performance Payment: County will qualify for a 

performance payment at the end of the calendar year if it was 
operational, as defined by serving Individuals for a minimum of 180 
calendar days per fiscal year and who: 

A. Submit the Monthly Choice Model Client Status Report no 
later than 45 calendar days following the end of each subject 
month during the term of the contract and address any 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 19 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

deficiencies identified by the Agreement Administrator. 

ii. Disbursement of Performance Payment: The performance payment is 
based on achievement of the performance criteria in accordance with 
the “Performance Requirements” section above. Upon OHA’s 
determination that Agreement or met the performance criteria, 
Agreement or may prepare and electronically submit a written invoice, 
to hsd.contracts@odhsoha.oregon.gov, for a performance payment, not 
to exceed the amount specified in that particular line of Exhibit E, 
“Financial Pages.” 

(d) Confirmation of Performance and Reporting Requirements:  County shall be 
required to demonstrate through the data properly reported in accordance with 
the and “Special Reporting Requirements” sections above, how funds awarded 
for MHS 06 Services were utilized consistent with the terms and limitations 
herein to meet the performance requirements of this Service Description, and 
that Agreement or shall be subject to the monitoring and review of 
performance requirements and quality measures by the OHA Agreement 
Administrator for the Program under which this MHS 06 Service Description 
falls.  

 

 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 20 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Part 2 
Payment and Financial Reporting 

 
1. Payment Provisions.  

OHA agrees to pay the County for accomplishing the Work required by this Contract as 
described in Exhibit A, Part 1, “Statement of Work” and Exhibit E, “Financial Pages”. 
 

2. Travel and Other Expenses.  
OHA will not reimburse County for any travel or additional expenses under this Contract. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 21 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Part 3 
Special Provisions 

 
1. Confidentiality of Information. 

a. Client Information: 
(1) All information as to personal facts and circumstances obtained by the 

Contractor on the client (“Client Information”) shall be treated as privileged 
communications, shall be held confidential, and shall not be divulged without 
the written consent of the client, his or her guardian, or the responsible parent 
when the client is a minor child, or except as required by other terms of this 
Contract. Nothing prohibits the disclosure of information in summaries, 
statistical, or other forms which does not identify particular individuals. 

(2) The use or disclosure of Client Information shall be limited to persons directly 
connected with the administration of this Contract. Confidentiality policies 
shall be applied to all requests from outside sources. 

(3) If Contractor, or any of its officers, directors, employees, agents, or 
subcontractors receives or has access to confidential Social Security 
Administration (SSA), or Federal Tax Information (FTI) records in the 
performance of Work under this Contract, Contractor shall comply, and 
ensure that all of Contractor’s officers, directors, employees, agents and 
subcontractors comply, with the following provisions: 

(a) With respect to SSA records: 
i. Provide a current list of employees and employees of any agent 

or subcontractor with access to SSA records; 
ii. Adhere to the same security requirements as employees of 

OHA; 

iii. Abide by all relevant Federal laws, restrictions on access, use, 
disclosure, and the security requirements contained within 
OHA’s agreement with SSA; 

iv. Provide its employees and agents the same security awareness 
training as OHA’s employees; and 

v. Include the provisions of this Section 1.a.(3)(a) in any 
subcontract. 

(b) With respect to Federal Tax Information (FTI), as defined in IRS 
Publication 1075: 
i. Contractor and its officers, directors and employees with 

access to, or who use FTI provided by OHA must meet the 
background check requirements defined in IRS Publication 
1075; 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 22 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

ii. Any FTI made available to Contractor shall be used only for the 
purpose of carrying out the provisions of this Contract.  
Contractor shall treat all information contained in FTI as 
confidential and that information shall not be divulged or made 
known in any manner to any person except as may be 
necessary in the performance of this Contract. Inspection by or 
disclosure to anyone other than an officer or employee of the 
Contractor is prohibited; 

iii. Contractor shall account for all FTI upon receipt and shall 
properly store all FTI before, during, and after processing. In 
addition, all FTI related output and products will be given the 
same level of protection as required for the source material; 

iv. No work involving FTI furnished under this Contract will be 
subcontracted without prior written approval of the IRS; 

v. Maintain a list of employees who are authorized access to FTI. 
Such list will be provided to OHA and, upon request, to the 
IRS reviewing office; and 

vi. Include the provisions of this Section 1.a.(3)(b) in any 
subcontract. 

(c) Failure to abide by any of the requirements in this subsection could 
result in criminal or civil penalties and result in termination of this 
Contract. 

(d) Contractor may be subject to periodic and ongoing security reviews to 
ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 1.a.(3). 

(4) Except as prohibited by Section 1.a.(3) above, OHA, Contractor and any 
subcontractor will share information as necessary to effectively serve OHA 
clients. 

b. Non-Client Information: 

(1) Each Party acknowledges that it and any of its officers, directors, employees 
and agents may, in the course of performing its responsibilities under the 
Contract, be exposed to or acquire information that is confidential to the other 
Party.  To the extent permitted by law, any and all information of any form 
provided to a Party or its officers, directors, employees and agents in the 
performance of the Contract that reasonably could at the time of its disclosure 
be understood to be confidential shall be deemed to be confidential 
information of the originating Party (“Confidential Non-Client Information”). 

(2) Confidential Non-Client Information shall be deemed not to include 
information that: 

(a) Is or becomes (other than by disclosure by the Party acquiring such 
information) publicly known or is contained in a publicly available 
document except to the extent applicable law still restricts disclosure; 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 23 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

(b) Is furnished by the originating Party to others without restrictions 
similar to those imposed on the receiving Party under the Contract; 

(c) Is rightfully in the receiving Party’s possession without the obligation 
of nondisclosure prior to the time of its disclosure by the originating 
Party under the Contract; 

(d) Is obtained from a source other than the originating Party without the 
obligation of confidentiality; 

(e) Is disclosed with the written consent of the originating Party; or 
(f) Is independently developed by the receiving Party’s officers, directors, 

employees and agents who can be shown to have had no access to the 
Confidential Non-Client Information. 

(3) Nondisclosure.  The receiving Party shall hold all Confidential Non-Client 
Information in strict confidence, using at least the same degree of care that it 
uses in maintaining the confidentiality of its own confidential information; 
and shall not sell, assign, license, market, transfer or otherwise dispose of, 
give or disclose Confidential Non-Client Information to third parties; shall not 
use Confidential Non-Client Information for any purposes whatsoever other 
than as contemplated by this Contract or reasonably related thereto; and shall 
advise any of its officers, directors, employees and agents that receive or have 
access to the Confidential Non-Client Information of their obligations to keep 
Confidential Non-Client Information confidential.  These confidentiality 
obligations do not restrict disclosure of information otherwise qualifying as 
Confidential Non-Client Information if the receiving Party can show that 
either of the following conditions exists: (i) the information was disclosed in 
response to a subpoena or court order duly issued in a judicial or legislative 
process, in which case the receiving Party shall notify the originating Party of 
the subpoena five days prior to the disclosure, unless such notice could not 
reasonably be given; or (ii) the disclosure was required to respond to a request 
for the information made under the Oregon Public Records Law, ORS 
192.311 to 192.478.  The receiving Party shall notify the originating Party of a 
public records request five days prior to the disclosure. 

c. Upon request and pursuant to the instructions of OHA, Contractor shall return or 
destroy all copies of Confidential Information, and Contractor shall certify in writing 
the return or destruction of all Confidential Information. 

d.  “Client” means any individual, family or provider: 
(1) For whom OHA must provide Services and incidental or specialized Goods, in 

any combination thereof (“Services and Incidental Supplies”), according to 
state, federal law, rule, and policy. Those Services and Incidental Supplies 
include but are not limited to treatment, care, protection, and support without 
regard to the proximity of the services being provided;  

(2) Who in fact receives and utilizes services provided by OHA primarily for that 
individual's or family's benefit; 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 24 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

(3) Who is under the custody, care, or both of OHA; or  

(4) Who provides direct care or Services and is a proxy or representative of the 
non-provider Client. 

2. Amendments. 
a. Subject to Section 2.c. below, OHA reserves the right to amend or extend the 

Contract under the following general circumstances: 
(1) OHA may extend the Contract for additional periods of time up to a total 

Contract period of 5 years, and for additional money associated with the 
extended period(s) of time. The determination for any extension for time may 
be based on OHA’s satisfaction with performance of the work or services 
provided by the Contractor under this Contract. 

(2) OHA may periodically amend any payment rates throughout the life of the 
Contract proportionate to increases in Portland Metropolitan Consumer Price 
Index; and to provide Cost Of Living Adjustments (COLA) if OHA so 
chooses. Any negotiation of increases in rates to implement a COLA will be 
as directed by the Oregon State Legislature.  In addition, OHA may 
periodically amend any payment rates throughout the life of the Contract to 
meet current market conditions. 

b. OHA further reserves the right to amend the Statement of for the following: 
(1) Programmatic changes, additions or modifications deemed necessary to 

accurately reflect the original scope of work that may not have been expressed 
in the original Contract or previous amendments to the Contract; 

(2) Implement additional phases of the Work; or 
(3) As necessitated by changes in Code of Federal Regulations, Oregon Revised 

Statutes, or Oregon Administrative Rules, which, in part or in combination, 
govern the provision of services provided under this Contract. 

c. Upon identification, by any party to this Contract, of any circumstance which may 
require an amendment to this Contract, the parties may enter into negotiations 
regarding the proposed modifications. Any resulting amendment must be in writing 
and be signed by all parties to the Contract before the modified or additional 
provisions are binding on either party. All amendments must comply with Exhibit B, 
“Standard Terms and Conditions”, Section 24. “Amendments; Waiver; Consent.” of 
this Contract. 

 
3. Contractor Requirements to Report Abuse of Certain Classes of Persons. 

a. Contractor shall comply with, and cause its employees, agents and subcontractors to 
comply with, the applicable laws for mandatory reporting of abuse including but not 
limited to abuse of the following classes of persons in Oregon: 

(1) Children (ORS 419B.005 through 419B.045); 
(2) Elderly Persons (ORS 124.055 through 124.065); 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 25 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

(3) Residents of Long Term Care Facilities (ORS 441.630 through 441.645); 

(4) Adults with Mental Illness or Developmental Disabilities (ORS 430.735 
through 430.743). 

b. In addition to the requirements of Section 3.a. above, if law enforcement is notified 
regarding a report of child abuse, Contractor shall also notify the local Child 
Protective Services Office of the Department of Human Services within 24 hours.  If 
law enforcement is notified regarding a report of abuse of elderly, long term care 
facility residents, adults with mental illness or developmental disabilities, the 
Contractor shall also notify the local Aging and People with Disabilities Office of the 
Department of Human Services within 24 hours. 

c. If known, the abuse report should contain the following: 

(1) The name and address of the abused person and any people responsible for 
that person’s care; 

(2) The abused person’s age; 
(3) The nature and the extent of the abuse, including any evidence of previous 

abuse; 
(4) The explanation given for the abuse; 
(5) The date of the incident; and 
(6) Any other information that might be helpful in establishing the cause of the 

abuse and the identity of the abuser. 

4. Equal Access to Services. Contractor shall provide equal access to covered services for both 
males and females under 18 years of age, including access to appropriate facilities, services 
and treatment, to achieve the policy in ORS 417.270. 

5. Media Disclosure. The Contractor will not provide information to the media regarding a 
recipient of services purchased under this Contract without first consulting the OHA office 
that referred the child or family. The Contractor will make immediate contact with the OHA 
office when media contact occurs. The OHA office will assist the Contractor with an 
appropriate follow-up response for the media. 

6. Nondiscrimination.  
a. The Contractor must provide services to OHA clients without regard to race, religion, 

national origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation or disability (as defined 
under the Americans with Disabilities Act). Contracted services must reasonably 
accommodate the cultural, language, and other special needs of clients.



 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Standard Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of 
law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim”) between the parties that arises 
from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within a 
circuit court for the State of Oregon of proper jurisdiction. THE PARTIES, BY EXECUTION 
OF THIS AGREEMENT, HEREBY CONSENT TO THE IN PERSONAM JURISDICTION OF 
SAID COURTS. Except as provided in this section, neither party waives any form of defense or 
immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the 
eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any Claim or 
from the jurisdiction of any court. The parties acknowledge that this is a binding and enforceable 
agreement and, to the extent permitted by law, expressly waive any defense alleging that either 
party does not have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this Agreement. 

2. Compliance with Law. Both parties shall comply with laws, regulations and executive orders to 
which they are subject and which are applicable to the Agreement or to the Work. Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, both parties expressly agree to comply with the 
following laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the 
Agreement: (a) all applicable requirements of state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules 
and regulations; (b) all state laws requiring reporting of client abuse; (c) ORS 659A.400 to 
659A.409, ORS 659A.145 and all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to 
those laws in the construction, remodeling, maintenance and operation of any structures and 
facilities, and in the conduct of all programs, services and training associated with the Work. 
These laws, regulations and executive orders are incorporated by reference herein to the extent 
that they are applicable to the Agreement and required by law to be so incorporated. All 
employers, including County and OHA, that employ subject workers who provide services in the 
State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers’ 
Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall require County or OHA to act in violation of state or federal law or the 
Constitution of the State of Oregon. 

3. Independent Contractors. The parties agree and acknowledge that their relationship is that of 
independent contracting parties and that County is not an officer, employee, or agent of the State 
of Oregon as those terms are used in ORS 30.265 or otherwise. 

4. Representations and Warranties. 
a. County represents and warrants as follows: 

(1) Organization and Authority. County is a political subdivision of the State of 
Oregon duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of 
Oregon. County has full power, authority and legal right to make this 
Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations hereunder. 

(2) Due Authorization. The making and performance by County of this Agreement 
(a) have been duly authorized by all necessary action by County and (b) do not 
and will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 27 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

order of any court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative 
agency or any provision of County’s charter or other organizational document 
and (c) do not and will not result in the breach of, or constitute a default or 
require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to which County 
is a party or by which County may be bound or affected. No authorization, 
consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or notification to any 
governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority is required for the 
execution, delivery or performance by County of this Agreement. 

(3) Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by 
County and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of County, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, 
insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights 
generally. 

(4) County has the skill and knowledge possessed by well-informed members of its 
industry, trade or profession and County will apply that skill and knowledge 
with care and diligence to perform the Work in a professional manner and in 
accordance with standards prevalent in County’s industry, trade or profession; 

(5) County shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, be qualified, 
professionally competent, and duly licensed to perform the Work; and 

(6) County prepared its proposal related to this Agreement, if any, independently 
from all other proposers, and without collusion, fraud, or other dishonesty. 

b. OHA represents and warrants as follows: 

(1) Organization and Authority. OHA has full power, authority and legal right to 
make this Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations hereunder. 

(2) Due Authorization. The making and performance by OHA of this Agreement 
(a) have been duly authorized by all necessary action by OHA and (b) do not 
and will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or 
order of any court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative 
agency and (c) do not and will not result in the breach of, or constitute a 
default or require any consent under any other agreement or instrument to 
which OHA is a party or by which OHA may be bound or affected. No 
authorization, consent, license, approval of, filing or registration with or 
notification to any governmental body or regulatory or supervisory authority 
is required for the execution, delivery or performance by OHA of this 
Agreement, other than approval by the Department of Justice if required by 
law. 

(3) Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by 
OHA and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of OHA, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, 
insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights 
generally. 

c. Warranties Cumulative. The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and 
not in lieu of, any other warranties provided. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 28 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

5. Funds Available and Authorized Clause. 
a. The State of Oregon’s payment obligations under this Agreement are conditioned 

upon OHA receiving funding, appropriations, limitations, allotment, or other 
expenditure authority sufficient to allow OHA, in the exercise of its reasonable 
administrative discretion, to meet its payment obligations under this Agreement. 
County is not entitled to receive payment under this Agreement from any part of 
Oregon state government other than OHA. Nothing in this Agreement is to be 
construed as permitting any violation of Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon 
Constitution or any other law regulating liabilities or monetary obligations of the 
State of Oregon. OHA represents that as of the date it executes this Agreement, it has 
sufficient appropriations and limitation for the current biennium to make payments 
under this Agreement. 

b. Payment Method. Payments under this Agreement will be made by Electronic Funds 
Transfer (EFT) and shall be processed in accordance with the provisions of OAR 
407-120-0100 through 407-120-0380 or OAR 410-120-1260 through OAR 410-120-
1460, as applicable, and any other Oregon Administrative Rules that are program-
specific to the billings and payments. Upon request, County shall provide its taxpayer 
identification number (TIN) and other necessary banking information to receive EFT 
payment. County shall maintain at its own expense a single financial institution or 
authorized payment agent capable of receiving and processing EFT using the 
Automated Clearing House (ACH) transfer method. The most current designation and 
EFT information will be used for all payments under this Agreement. County shall 
provide this designation and information on a form provided by OHA. In the event 
that EFT information changes or the County elects to designate a different financial 
institution for the receipt of any payment made using EFT procedures, the County 
shall provide the changed information or designation to OHA on a OHA-approved 
form. OHA is not required to make any payment under this Agreement until receipt 
of the correct EFT designation and payment information from the County. 

6. Recovery of Overpayments. If billings under this Agreement, or under any other Agreement 
between County and OHA, result in payments to County to which County is not entitled, 
OHA, after giving to County written notification and an opportunity to object, may withhold 
from payments due to County such amounts, over such periods of time, as are necessary to 
recover the amount of the overpayment. Prior to withholding, if County objects to the 
withholding or the amount proposed to be withheld, County shall notify OHA that it wishes 
to engage in dispute resolution in accordance with Section 19 of this Agreement. 

7. Reserved. 
8. Ownership of Intellectual Property. 

a. Definitions. As used in this Section 8 and elsewhere in this Agreement, the following 
terms have the meanings set forth below: 

(1) "County Intellectual Property" means any intellectual property owned by 
County and developed independently from the Work. 

(2) "Third Party Intellectual Property" means any intellectual property owned by 
parties other than OHA or County. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 29 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

b. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, or as otherwise required by state or 
federal law, OHA will not own the right, title and interest in any intellectual property 
created or delivered by County or a subcontractor in connection with the Work. With 
respect to that portion of the intellectual property that the County owns, County 
grants to OHA a perpetual, worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free and irrevocable 
license, subject to any provisions in the Agreement that restrict or prohibit 
dissemination or disclosure of information, to (1) use, reproduce, prepare derivative 
works based upon, distribute copies of, perform and display the intellectual property, 
(2) authorize third parties to exercise the rights set forth in Section 8.b.(1) on OHA’s 
behalf, and (3) sublicense to third parties the rights set forth in Section 8.b.(1). 

c. If state or federal law requires that OHA or County grant to the United States a 
license to any intellectual property, or if state or federal law requires that OHA or the 
United States own the intellectual property, then County shall execute such further 
documents and instruments as OHA may reasonably request in order to make any 
such grant or to assign ownership in the intellectual property to the United States or 
OHA. To the extent that OHA becomes the owner of any intellectual property created 
or delivered by County in connection with the Work, OHA will grant a perpetual, 
worldwide, non-exclusive, royalty-free and irrevocable license, subject to any 
provisions in the Agreement that restrict or prohibit dissemination or disclosure of 
information, to County to use, copy, distribute, display, build upon and improve the 
intellectual property. 

d. County shall include in its subcontracts terms and conditions necessary to require that 
subcontractors execute such further documents and instruments as OHA may 
reasonably request in order to make any grant of license or assignment of ownership 
that may be required by federal or state law. 

9. County Default. County shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any 
of the following events: 
a. County fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, agreements or 

obligations set forth herein; 
b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by County herein or in any 

documents or reports relied upon by OHA to measure the delivery of Work, the 
expenditure of payments or the performance by County is untrue in any material 
respect when made; 

c. County (1) applies for or consents to the appointment of, or taking of possession by, a 
receiver, custodian, trustee, or liquidator of itself or all of its property, (2) admits in 
writing its inability, or is generally unable, to pay its debts as they become due, (3) 
makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (4) is adjudicated a 
bankrupt or insolvent, (5) commences a voluntary case under the Federal Bankruptcy 
Code (as now or hereafter in effect), (6) files a petition seeking to take advantage of 
any other law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding-up, or 
composition or adjustment of debts, (7) fails to controvert in a timely and appropriate 
manner, or acquiesces in writing to, any petition filed against it in an involuntary case 
under the Bankruptcy Code, or (8) takes any action for the purpose of effecting any of 
the foregoing; or 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 30 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

d. A proceeding or case is commenced, without the application or consent of County, in 
any court of competent jurisdiction, seeking (1) the liquidation, dissolution or 
winding-up, or the composition or readjustment of debts, of County, (2) the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver, custodian, liquidator, or the like of County or of all 
or any substantial part of its assets, or (3) similar relief in respect to County under any 
law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, winding-up, or composition or 
adjustment of debts, and such proceeding or case continues undismissed, or an order, 
judgment, or decree approving or ordering any of the foregoing is entered and 
continues unstayed and in effect for a period of sixty consecutive days, or an order for 
relief against County is entered in an involuntary case under the Federal Bankruptcy 
Code (as now or hereafter in effect). 

10. OHA Default. OHA shall be in default under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of 
the following events: 
a. OHA fails to perform, observe or discharge any of its covenants, agreements, or 

obligations set forth herein; or 
b. Any representation, warranty or statement made by OHA herein or in any documents 

or reports relied upon by County to measure performance by OHA is untrue in any 
material respect when made. 

11. Termination. 
a. County Termination. County may terminate this Agreement: 

(1) For its convenience, upon at least 30 days advance written notice to OHA; 
(2) Upon 45 days advance written notice to OHA, if County does not obtain 

funding, appropriations and other expenditure authorizations from County’s 
governing body, federal, state or other sources sufficient to permit County to 
satisfy its performance obligations under this Agreement, as determined by 
County in the reasonable exercise of its administrative discretion; 

(3) Upon 30 days advance written notice to OHA, if OHA is in default under this 
Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 day period 
or such longer period, if any, as County may specify in the notice; or 

(4) Immediately upon written notice to OHA, if Oregon statutes or federal laws, 
regulations or guidelines are modified, changed or interpreted by the Oregon 
Legislative Assembly, the federal government or a court in such a way that 
County no longer has the authority to meet its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

b. OHA Termination. OHA may terminate this Agreement: 
(1) For its convenience, upon at least 30 days advance written notice to County; 
(2) Upon 45 days advance written notice to County, if OHA does not obtain 

funding, appropriations and other expenditure authorizations from federal, 
state or other sources sufficient to meet the payment obligations of OHA 
under this Agreement, as determined by OHA in the reasonable exercise of its 
administrative discretion. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, OHA may 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 31 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

terminate this Agreement, immediately upon written notice to County or at 
such other time as it may determine if action by the Oregon Legislative 
Assembly or Emergency Board reduces OHA’s legislative authorization for 
expenditure of funds to such a degree that OHA will no longer have sufficient 
expenditure authority to meet its payment obligations under this Agreement, 
as determined by OHA in the reasonable exercise of its administrative 
discretion, and the effective date for such reduction in expenditure 
authorization is less than 45 days from the date the action is taken; 

(3) Immediately upon written notice to County if Oregon statutes or federal laws, 
regulations or guidelines are modified, changed or interpreted by the Oregon 
Legislative Assembly, the federal government or a court in such a way that 
OHA no longer has the authority to meet its obligations under this Agreement 
or no longer has the authority to provide payment from the funding source it 
had planned to use; 

(4) Upon 30 days advance written notice to County, if County is in default under 
this Agreement and such default remains uncured at the end of said 30 day 
period or such longer period, if any, as OHA may specify in the notice; 

(5) Immediately upon written notice to County, if any license or certificate 
required by law or regulation to be held by County or a subcontractor to 
perform the Work is for any reason denied, revoked, suspended, not renewed 
or changed in such a way that County or a subcontractor no longer meets 
requirements to perform the Work. This termination right may only be 
exercised with respect to the particular part of the Work impacted by loss of 
necessary licensure or certification; or 

(6) Immediately upon written notice to County, if OHA determines that County or 
any of its subcontractors have endangered or are endangering the health or 
safety of a client or others in performing work covered by this Agreement. 

c. Mutual Termination. The Agreement may be terminated immediately upon mutual 
written consent of the parties or at such time as the parties may agree in the written 
consent. 

12. Effect of Termination. 
a. Entire Agreement. 

(1) Upon termination of this Agreement, OHA shall have no further obligation to 
pay County under this Agreement. 

(2) Upon termination of this Agreement, County shall have no further obligation 
to perform Work under this Agreement. 

b. Obligations and Liabilities. Notwithstanding Section 12.a., any termination of this 
Agreement shall not prejudice any obligations or liabilities of either party accrued 
prior to such termination. 

13. Limitation of Liabilities. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR 
ANY INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OR 
RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 32 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

DAMAGES OF ANY SORT ARISING SOLELY FROM THE TERMINATION OF THIS 
AGREEMENT OR ANY PART HEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS TERMS. 

14. Insurance. County shall require subcontractors to maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit 
C, which is attached hereto. 

15. Records Maintenance; Access. County shall maintain all financial records relating to this 
Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, County 
shall maintain any other records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and 
payments and writings of County, whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent 
to this Agreement in such a manner as to clearly document County's performance. All financial 
records, other records, books, documents, papers, plans, records of shipments and payments 
and writings of County whether in paper, electronic or other form, that are pertinent to this 
Agreement, are collectively referred to as “Records.” County acknowledges and agrees that 
OHA and the Oregon Secretary of State's Office and the federal government and their duly 
authorized representatives shall have access to all Records to perform examinations and audits 
and make excerpts and transcripts. County shall retain and keep accessible all Records for a 
minimum of six years, or such longer period as may be required by applicable law, following 
final payment and termination of this Agreement, or until the conclusion of any audit, 
controversy or litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement, whichever date is later. 
County shall maintain Records in accordance with the records retention schedules set forth in 
OAR Chapter 166. 

16. Information Privacy/Security/Access. If the Work performed under this Agreement 
requires County or its subcontractor(s) to have access to or use of any OHA computer system 
or other OHA Information Asset for which OHA imposes security requirements, and OHA 
grants County or its subcontractor(s) access to such OHA Information Assets or Network and 
Information Systems, County shall comply and require all subcontractor(s) to which such 
access has been granted to comply with OAR 943-014-0300 through OAR 943-014-0320, as 
such rules may be revised from time to time. For purposes of this section, “Information 
Asset” and “Network and Information System” have the meaning set forth in OAR 943-014-
0305, as such rule may be revised from time to time. 

17. Force Majeure. Neither OHA nor County shall be held responsible for delay or default 
caused by fire, civil unrest, labor unrest, natural causes, or war which is beyond the 
reasonable control of OHA or County, respectively. Each party shall, however, make all 
reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such cause of delay or default and shall, upon the 
cessation of the cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement. 
OHA may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party after reasonably 
determining that the delay or breach will likely prevent successful performance of this 
Agreement. 

18. Assignment of Agreement, Successors in Interest. 
a. County shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement without prior written 

approval of OHA. Any such assignment or transfer, if approved, is subject to such 
conditions and provisions as OHA may deem necessary. No approval by OHA of any 
assignment or transfer of interest shall be deemed to create any obligation of OHA in 
addition to those set forth in the Agreement. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 33 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

b. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto, and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

19. Alternative Dispute Resolution. The parties should attempt in good faith to resolve any 
dispute arising out of this agreement. This may be done at any management level, including 
at a level higher than persons directly responsible for administration of the agreement. In 
addition, the parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-
binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation. 

20. Subcontracts. County shall not enter into any subcontracts for any of the Work required by 
this Agreement without OHA’s prior written consent. In addition to any other provisions 
OHA may require, County shall include in any permitted subcontract under this Agreement 
provisions to require that OHA will receive the benefit of subcontractor performance as if the 
subcontractor were the County with respect to Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 15, 16, 18, 21, and 23 of 
this Exhibit B. OHA’s consent to any subcontract shall not relieve County of any of its duties 
or obligations under this Agreement. 

21. No Third Party Beneficiaries. OHA and County are the only parties to this Agreement and 
are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. The parties agree that County’s performance 
under this Agreement is solely for the benefit of OHA to assist and enable OHA to 
accomplish its statutory mission. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or 
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly or 
otherwise, to third persons any greater than the rights and benefits enjoyed by the general 
public unless such third persons are individually identified by name herein and expressly 
described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement. 

22. Amendments. No amendment, modification or change of terms of this Agreement shall bind 
either party unless in writing and signed by both parties and, when required, the Department 
of Justice. Such amendment, modification, or change, if made, shall be effective only in the 
specific instance and for the specific purpose given. 

23. Severability. The parties agree that if any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by 
a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the 
remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
term or provision held to be invalid. 

24. Survival. Sections 1, 4, 5, 6, 8, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 28, 29, 30 and 
31of this Exhibit B shall survive Agreement expiration or termination as well as those the 
provisions of this Agreement that by their context are meant to survive. Agreement expiration 
or termination shall not extinguish or prejudice either party’s right to enforce this Agreement 
with respect to any default by the other party that has not been cured. 

25. Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications 
between the parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by 
personal delivery, facsimile, or mailing the same, postage prepaid to County or OHA at the 
address or number set forth in this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as 
either party may indicate pursuant to this section. Any communication or notice so addressed 
and mailed by regular mail shall be deemed received and effective five days after the date of 
mailing. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed received and 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 34 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

effective on the day the transmitting machine generates a receipt of the successful 
transmission, if transmission was during normal business hours of the recipient, or on the 
next business day if transmission was outside normal business hours of the recipient. 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, to be effective against the other party, any notice transmitted 
by facsimile must be confirmed by telephone notice to the other party. Any communication 
or notice given by personal delivery shall be deemed effective when actually delivered to the 
addressee. 
OHA: Office of Contracts & Procurement 
 635 Capitol Street NE, Suite 350 
 Salem, OR 97301 
 Telephone: 503-945-5818 
 Facsimile:  503-378-4324 

26. Headings. The headings and captions to sections of this Agreement have been inserted for 
identification and reference purposes only and shall not be used to construe the meaning or to 
interpret this Agreement. 

27. Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver by that party of that or any other provision. No waiver or consent shall be 
effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom it is asserted. 

28. Reserved. 
29. Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding 

alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against a 
party (the "Notified Party") with respect to which the other party ("Other Party") may have 
liability, the Notified Party must promptly notify the Other Party in writing of the Third Party 
Claim and deliver to the Other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with 
respect to the Third Party Claim. Either party is entitled to participate in the defense of a 
Third Party Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. 
Receipt by the Other Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful 
opportunity for the Other Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of 
the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to the Other 
Party’s liability with respect to the Third Party Claim. 
With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the State is jointly liable with the County (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), the State shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually 
and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the County in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the County on the 
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or 
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault 
of the State on the one hand and of the County on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. The State’s contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if the 
State had sole liability in the proceeding. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 35 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which the County is jointly liable with the State (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), the County shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually 
and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by the State in such proportion as is appropriate 
to reflect the relative fault of the County on the one hand and of the State on the other hand in 
connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement 
amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative fault of the 
County on the one hand and of the State on the other hand shall be determined by reference 
to, among other things, the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 
opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such expenses, judgments, 
fines or settlement amounts. The County’s contribution amount in any instance is capped to 
the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law if it had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 

30. Indemnification by Subcontractors. County shall take all reasonable steps to cause its 
contractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to 
indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State of Oregon and its officers, employees 
and agents (“Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 
losses, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter 
defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent 
or willful acts or omissions of County’s contractor or any of the officers, agents, employees 
or subcontractors of the contractor (“Claims”). It is the specific intention of the parties that 
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or 
willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and 
against any and all Claims. 

31. Stop-Work Order. OHA may, at any time, by written notice to the County, require the 
County to stop all, or any part of the work required by this Agreement for a period of up to 
90 days after the date of the notice, or for any further period to which the parties may agree 
through a duly executed amendment. Upon receipt of the notice, County shall immediately 
comply with the Stop-Work Order terms and take all necessary steps to minimize the 
incurrence of costs allocable to the work affected by the stop work order notice. Within a 
period of 90 days after issuance of the written notice, or within any extension of that period 
to which the parties have agreed, OHA shall either: 

a. Cancel or modify the stop work order by a supplementary written notice; or 
b. Terminate the work as permitted by either the Default or the Convenience provisions 

of Section 11. Termination. 

If the Stop Work Order is canceled, OHA may, after receiving and evaluating a request by 
the County, make an adjustment in the time required to complete this Agreement and the 
Agreement price by a duly executed amendment. 

  



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 36 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
Subcontractor Insurance Requirements 

Local Government shall require its first tier contractor(s) (Contractor) that are not units of local 
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND 
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before the 
contractors perform under contracts between Local Government and the contractors (the 
"Subcontracts"), and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of the 
Subcontracts. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized 
to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are 
acceptable to OHA.  Local Government shall not authorize contractors to begin work under the 
Subcontracts until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Local Government shall monitor 
continued compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis.  Local 
Government shall incorporate appropriate provisions in the Subcontracts permitting it to enforce 
contractor compliance with the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce 
such compliance. Examples of "reasonable steps" include issuing stop work orders (or the 
equivalent) until the insurance is in full force or terminating the Subcontracts as permitted by the 
Subcontracts, or pursuing legal action to enforce the insurance requirements. In no event shall Local 
Government permit a contractor to work under a Subcontract when the Local Government is aware 
that the contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, a 
"first tier" contractor is a contractor with which the county directly enters into a contract. It does not 
include a subcontractor with which the contractor enters into a contract. 

TYPES AND AMOUNTS 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY 

All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, shall 
comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for those 
workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 656.126(2).  Contractor 
shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these requirements.  If 
Contractor is a subject employer, as defined in ORS 656.023, Contractor shall also obtain employers' 
liability insurance coverage with limits not less than $500,000 each accident.  If contractor is an 
employer subject to any other state’s workers’ compensation law, Contactor shall provide workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage for its employees as required by applicable workers’ 
compensation laws including employers’ liability insurance coverage with limits not less than 
$500,000 and shall require and ensure that each of its out-of-state subcontractors complies with these 
requirements. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 37 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY: 

 Required      Not required 

Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage in a form and 
with coverage that are satisfactory to the OHA. This insurance shall include personal and advertising 
injury liability, products and completed operations, contractual liability coverage for the indemnity 
provided under this contract, and have no limitation of coverage to designated premises, project, or 
operation. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence.  Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000. 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE: 

 Required      Not required 

Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor’s business use including coverage for all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 for 
bodily injury and property damage.  This coverage may be written in combination with the 
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability).   Use of personal automobile liability insurance coverage may be acceptable 
if evidence that the policy includes a business use endorsement is provided. 

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY: 

 Required      Not required 

Professional Liability insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission or any 
negligent acts related to the services to be provided under the Subcontract by the Contractor and 
Contractor’s subcontractors, agents, officers or employees in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000.  If coverage is on a claims 
made basis, then either an extended reporting period of not less than 24 months shall be included in 
the Professional Liability insurance coverage, or the Contractor shall provide Tail Coverage as stated 
below. 

EXCESS/UMBRELLA INSURANCE: 

A combination of primary and excess/umbrella insurance may be used to meet the required limits of 
insurance. 

ADDITIONAL COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS: 

Contractor’s insurance shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance.  Contractor 
shall pay for all deductibles, self-insured retention and self-insurance, if any. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED: 

The Commercial General Liability insurance and Automobile liability insurance required under the 
Subcontract must include an additional insured endorsement specifying the State of Oregon, its 
officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds, including additional insured status with 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 38 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations and completed operations, but only with respect 
to Contractor's activities to be performed under this Subcontract.  Coverage shall be primary and 
non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.  The Additional Insured endorsement 
with respect to liability arising out of Contractor’s ongoing operations must be on ISO Form CG 20 
10 07 04 or equivalent and the Additional Insured endorsement with respect to completed operations 
must be on ISO form CG 20 37 04 13 or equivalent. 

TAIL COVERAGE: 

If any of the required insurance is on a claims made basis and does not include an extended reporting 
period of at least 24 months, Contractor shall maintain either tail coverage or continuous claims 
made liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous claims made coverage is on or 
before the effective date of this Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following the later of (i) 
Contractor’s completion and Local Government’s acceptance of all Services required under this 
Subcontract, or, (ii) The expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Subcontract. 

CERTIFICATE(S) AND PROOF OF INSURANCE: 

Local Government shall obtain from the Contractor a Certificate(s) of Insurance for all required 
insurance before delivering any Goods and performing any Services required under this Contract. 
The Certificate(s) shall list the State of Oregon, its officers, employees and agents as a Certificate 
holder and as an endorsed Additional Insured.  If excess/umbrella insurance is used to meet the 
minimum insurance requirement, the Certificate of Insurance must include a list of all policies that 
fall under the excess/umbrella insurance.  As proof of insurance OHA has the right to request copies 
of insurance policies and endorsements relating to the insurance requirements in this Contract. 

NOTICE OF CHANGE OR CANCELLATION: 

The Contractor or its insurer must provide at least 30 days’ written notice to Local Government 
before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-
renewal of the required insurance coverage(s). 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENT REVIEW: 

Contractor agrees to periodic review of insurance requirements by OHA under this agreement and to 
provide updated requirements as mutually agreed upon by Contractor and Local Government. 

STATE ACCEPTANCE: 

All insurance providers are subject to OHA acceptance.  If requested by OHA, Contractor shall 
provide complete copies of insurance policies, endorsements, self-insurance documents and related 
insurance documents to OHA’s representatives responsible for verification of the insurance 
coverages required under this Exhibit C. 

  



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 39 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Federal Terms and Conditions 
 
General Applicability and Compliance. Unless exempt under 45 CFR Part 87 for Faith-Based 
Organizations (Federal Register, July 16, 2004, Volume 69, #136), or other federal provisions, 
Contractor shall comply and, as indicated, cause all subcontractors to comply with the following 
federal requirements to the extent that they are applicable to this Contract, to Contractor, or to the 
Work, or to any combination of the foregoing. For purposes of this Contract, all references to federal 
and state laws are references to federal and state laws as they may be amended from time to time. 

1. Miscellaneous Federal Provisions. Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors 
to comply with all federal laws, regulations, and executive orders applicable to the Contract 
or to the delivery of Work. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor 
expressly agrees to comply and require all subcontractors to comply with the following laws, 
regulations and executive orders to the extent they are applicable to the Contract: (a) Title VI 
and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, (b) Sections 503 and 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, (c) the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as 
amended, (d) Executive Order 11246, as amended, (e) the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, as amended, (f) the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 
1967, as amended, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (g) the Vietnam Era 
Veterans’ Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, (h) all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws, (i) all other applicable 
requirements of federal civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations, and (j) 
all federal laws requiring reporting of Client abuse. These laws, regulations and executive 
orders are incorporated by reference herein to the extent that they are applicable to the 
Contract and required by law to be so incorporated. No federal funds may be used to provide 
Work in violation of 42 U.S.C. 14402. 

2. Equal Employment Opportunity. If this Contract, including amendments, is for more than 
$10,000, then Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with 
Executive Order 11246, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by 
Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR 
Part 60). 

3. Clean Air, Clean Water, EPA Regulations. If this Contract, including amendments, 
exceeds $100,000 then Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with 
all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air 
Act (42 U.S.C. 7606), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (commonly 
known as the Clean Water Act) (33 U.S.C. 1251 to 1387), specifically including, but not 
limited to Section 508 (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental 
Protection Agency regulations (2 CFR Part 1532), which prohibit the use under non-exempt 
Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List of Violating 
Facilities. Violations shall be reported to OHA, United States Department of Health and 
Human Services and the appropriate Regional Office of the Environmental Protection 
Agency. Contractor shall include and require all subcontractors to include in all contracts 
with subcontractors receiving more than $100,000, language requiring the subcontractor to 
comply with the federal laws identified in this section. 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 40 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

4. Energy Efficiency. Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with 
applicable mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained 
in the Oregon energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act 42 U.S.C. 6201 et. seq. (Pub. L. 94-163). 

5. Truth in Lobbying. By signing this Contract, the Contractor certifies, to the best of the 
Contractor’s knowledge and belief that: 

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, 
or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any 
federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the 
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative 
agreement. 

b. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan or 
cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form 
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying” in accordance with its instructions. 

c. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients 
and subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

d. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this Contract was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a 
prerequisite for making or entering into this Contract imposed by Section 1352, Title 
31 of the U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for 
each such failure. 

e. No part of any federal funds paid to Contractor under this Contract shall be used, 
other than for normal and recognized executive legislative relationships, for publicity 
or propaganda purposes, for the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, pamphlet, 
booklet, publication, electronic communication, radio, television, or video 
presentation designed to support or defeat the enactment of legislation before the 
United States Congress or any State or local legislature itself, or designed to support 
or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order issued 
by the executive branch of any State or local government itself. 

f. No part of any federal funds paid to Contractor under this Contract shall be used to 
pay the salary or expenses of any grant or contract recipient, or agent acting for such 
recipient, related to any activity designed to influence the enactment of legislation, 
appropriations, regulation, administrative action, or Executive order proposed or 
pending before the United States Congress or any State government, State legislature 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 41 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

or local legislature or legislative body, other than for normal and recognized 
executive-legislative relationships or participation by an agency or officer of a State, 
local or tribal government in policymaking and administrative processes within the 
executive branch of that government. 

g. The prohibitions in subsections (e) and (f) of this section shall include any activity to 
advocate or promote any proposed, pending or future Federal, State or local tax 
increase, or any proposed, pending, or future requirement or restriction on any legal 
consumer product, including its sale or marketing, including but not limited to the 
advocacy or promotion of gun control. 

h. No part of any federal funds paid to Contractor under this Contract may be used for 
any activity that promotes the legalization of any drug or other substance included in 
schedule I of the schedules of controlled substances established under Section 202 of 
the Controlled Substances Act except for normal and recognized executive 
congressional communications.  This limitation shall not apply when there is 
significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use of such drug or 
other substance of that federally sponsored clinical trials are being conducted to 
determine therapeutic advantage. 

6. Resource Conservation and Recovery. Contractor shall comply and require all 
subcontractors to comply with all mandatory standards and policies that relate to resource 
conservation and recovery pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
(codified at 42 U.S.C. 6901 et. seq.). Section 6002 of that Act (codified at 42 U.S.C. 6962) 
requires that preference be given in procurement programs to the purchase of specific 
products containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed by the 
Environmental Protection Agency. Current guidelines are set forth in 40 CFR Part 247. 

7. Audits. 
a. Contractor shall comply, and require all subcontractors to comply, with applicable 

audit requirements and responsibilities set forth in this Contract and applicable state 
or federal law. 

b. If Contractor expends $750,000 or more in federal funds (from all sources) in a fiscal 
year, Contractor shall have a single organization-wide audit conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200. Copies of 
all audits must be submitted to OHA within 30 days of completion. If Contractor 
expends less than $750,000 in a fiscal year, Contractor is exempt from Federal audit 
requirements for that year.  Records must be available as provided in Exhibit B, 
“Records Maintenance, Access”. 

8. Debarment and Suspension. Contractor shall not permit any person or entity to be a 
subcontractor if the person or entity is listed on the non-procurement portion of the General 
Service Administration’s “List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or 
Nonprocurement Programs” in accordance with Executive Orders No. 12549 and No. 12689, 
“Debarment and Suspension”. (See 2 CFR Part 180.) This list contains the names of parties 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, and contractors declared ineligible 
under statutory authority other than Executive Order No. 12549. Subcontractors with awards 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 42 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

that exceed the simplified acquisition threshold shall provide the required certification 
regarding their exclusion status and that of their principals prior to award. 

9. Pro-Children Act. Contractor shall comply and require all subcontractors to comply with 
the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (codified at 20 U.S.C. Section 6081 et. seq.). 

10. Medicaid Services. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and 
regulation pertaining to the provision of Medicaid Services under the Medicaid Act, Title 
XIX, 42 U.S.C. Section 1396 et. seq., including without limitation: 

a. Keep such records as are necessary to fully disclose the extent of the services 
provided to individuals receiving Medicaid assistance and shall furnish such 
information to any state or federal agency responsible for administering the Medicaid 
program regarding any payments claimed by such person or institution for providing 
Medicaid Services as the state or federal agency may from time to time request. 42 
U.S.C. Section 1396a (a)(27); 42 CFR Part 431.107(b)(1) & (2). 

b. Comply with all disclosure requirements of 42 CFR Part 1002.3(a) and 42 CFR Part 
455 Subpart (B). 

c. Maintain written notices and procedures respecting advance directives in compliance 
with 42 U.S.C. Section 1396(a)(57) and (w), 42 CFR Part 431.107(b)(4), and 42 CFR 
Part 489 subpart I. 

d. Certify when submitting any claim for the provision of Medicaid Services that the 
information submitted is true, accurate and complete. Contractor shall acknowledge 
Contractor’s understanding that payment of the claim will be from federal and state 
funds and that any falsification or concealment of a material fact may be prosecuted 
under federal and state laws. 

e. Entities receiving $5 million or more annually (under this Contract and any other 
Medicaid contract) for furnishing Medicaid health care items or services shall, as a 
condition of receiving such payments, adopt written fraud, waste and abuse policies 
and procedures and inform employees, contractors and agents about the policies and 
procedures in compliance with Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005, 42 
U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(68). 

11. Agency-based Voter Registration. If applicable, Contractor shall comply with the Agency-
based Voter Registration sections of the National Voter Registration Act of 1993 that require 
voter registration opportunities be offered where an individual may apply for or receive an 
application for public assistance. 

12. Disclosure. 
a. 42 CFR Part 455.104 requires the State Medicaid agency to obtain the following 

information from any provider of Medicaid or CHIP services, including fiscal agents 
of providers and managed care entities: (1) the name and address (including the 
primary business address, every business location and P.O. Box address) of any 
person (individual or corporation) with an ownership or control interest in the 
provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity; (2) in the case of an individual, the date 
of birth and Social Security Number, or, in the case of a corporation, the tax 
identification number of the entity, with an ownership interest in the provider, fiscal 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 43 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

agent or managed care entity or of any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal 
agent or managed care entity has a 5% or more interest; (3) whether the person 
(individual or corporation) with an ownership or control interest in the provider, fiscal 
agent or managed care entity is related to another person with ownership or control 
interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child 
or sibling, or whether the person (individual or corporation) with an ownership or 
control interest in any subcontractor in which the provider, fiscal agent or managed 
care entity has a 5% or more interest is related to another person with ownership or 
control interest in the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity as a spouse, 
parent, child or sibling; (4) the name of any other provider, fiscal agent or managed 
care entity in which an owner of the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity has 
an ownership or control interest; and, (5) the name, address, date of birth and Social 
Security Number of any managing employee of the provider, fiscal agent or managed 
care entity. 

b. 42 CFR Part 455.434 requires as a condition of enrollment as a Medicaid or CHIP 
provider, to consent to criminal background checks, including fingerprinting when 
required to do so under state law, or by the category of the provider based on risk of 
fraud, waste and abuse under federal law. 

c. As such, a provider must disclose any person with a 5% or greater direct or indirect 
ownership interest in the provider whom has been convicted of a criminal offense 
related to that person's involvement with the Medicare, Medicaid, or title XXI 
program in the last 10 years. 

d. Contractor shall make the disclosures required by this Section 13. to OHA. OHA 
reserves the right to take such action required by law, or where OHA has discretion, it 
deems appropriate, based on the information received (or the failure to receive 
information) from the provider, fiscal agent or managed care entity. 

13. Federal Intellectual Property Rights Notice.  The federal funding agency, as the awarding 
agency of the funds used, at least in part, for the Work under this Contract, may have certain 
rights as set forth in the federal requirements pertinent to these funds.  For purposes of this 
subsection, the terms “grant” and “award” refer to funding issued by the federal funding 
agency to the State of Oregon.  The Contractor agrees that it has been provided the following 
notice: 

a. The federal funding agency reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable 
right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use the Work, and to authorize others to do 
so, for Federal Government purposes with respect to: 

(1) The copyright in any Work developed under a grant, subgrant or contract 
under a grant or subgrant; and 

(2) Any rights of copyright to which a grantee, subgrantee or a contractor 
purchases ownership with grant support. 

b. The parties are subject to applicable federal regulations governing patents and 
inventions, including government-wide regulations issued by the Department of 
Commerce at 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 



44300-00026114/aeb  Page 44 of 46 
OHA IGA County Updated: 3/2/2020 

Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and 
Cooperative Agreements.” 

c. The parties are subject to applicable requirements and regulations of the federal 
funding agency regarding rights in data first produced under a grant, subgrant or 
contract under a grant or subgrant. 

14. Super Circular Requirements. 2 CFR Part 200, or the equivalent applicable provision 
adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, including but not limited to the 
following: 

a. Property Standards. 2 CFR 200.313, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted 
by the awarding federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, which generally describes the 
required maintenance, documentation, and allowed disposition of equipment 
purchased with federal funds. 

b. Procurement Standards. When procuring goods or services (including professional 
consulting services), applicable state procurement regulations found in the Oregon 
Public Contracting Code, ORS chapters 279A, 279B and 279C or 2 CFR §§ 200.318 
through 200.326, or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the awarding 
federal agency in 2 CFR Subtitle B, as applicable. 

c. Contract Provisions. The contract provisions listed in 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II, 
or the equivalent applicable provision adopted by the awarding federal agency in 2 
CFR Subtitle B, that are hereby incorporated into this Exhibit, are, to the extent 
applicable, obligations of Contractor, and Contractor shall also include these contract 
provisions in its contracts with non-Federal entities. 

15. Federal Whistleblower Protection.  Contractor shall comply, and ensure the compliance by 
subcontractors or subgrantees, with 41 U.S.C. 4712, Enhancement of contractor protection 
from reprisal for disclosure of certain information. 

 
16. Information Required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200. All required 

data elements in accordance with 45 CFR 75.352 are available at: 
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/amh/Pages/federal-reporting.aspx.




